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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is
available on the Company’s website at www.huge-china.com.hk
(the “Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented
to receive the corporate communications of the Company (the
“Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website and who
for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the
annual report posted on the Company Website will promptly upon
request be sent the annual report in printed form free of charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means
of receipt (either in printed form or via the Company Website)
and/or language(s) (either English only or Chinese only or both
languages) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in
printed form, and/or to change their choice of the means of receipt
and/or language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in
writing to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or
by sending an email to the branch share registrar of the Company
in Hong Kong at cocoon.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive printed copy of the
Corporate Communications in either English or Chinese version
will receive both English and Chinese versions of this annual
report since both languages are bound together into one booklet.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

The Board of Directors of Cocoon Holdings Limited (the
“Board”) takes pleasure in presenting the audited consolidated
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
a revenue of HK$10,812,000 as compared to HK$10,570,000 in
the prior year, representing an increase of 2.3%. The increment
in revenue was mainly due to increase of interest income during
the year. The Group recorded a realised loss of HK$45,350,000
(2017: HK$84,437,000) and fair value loss of HK$10,817,000
(2017: HK$108,461,000) on listed securities. The Group recorded
a realised loss of HK$10,770,000 (2017: nil) and an unrealised
loss of HK$3,681,000 (2017: HK$14,328,000) on unlisted
securities during the year. During the year, impairment losses of
various loan notes of approximately HK$4,992,000 and deposits
of approximately HK$351,000 were recognised. With the impact
of unfavourable performance of certain publicly traded securities
held by the Group and fair value loss of certain unlisted securities
during the year, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$69,782,000 as compared to a loss of
HK$205,508,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2018, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$135,391,000 (2017: HK$174,734,000). The net
assets significantly decreased 22.5% when compared last year is
mainly due to the decrease in fair value of the listed shares. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss decreased from
HK$201,399,000 as at 31 December 2017 to HK$85,069,000 as at
31 December 2018 and the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income of approximately HK$35,176,000
(2017: nil) was recognised during the year.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 29 June 2018, the English name of the Company had been
changed from “Huge China Holdings Limited” to “Cocoon Holdings
Limited” and the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company
has been changed from “EZ B ZE R AR A A" to “F B XS %
% & BR A 7]” and both the new English and Chinese names of the
Company had been registered in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
with effect from 17 July 2018.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The external environment is of high relevance to the economy
and financial market in Hong Kong. In term of the slow growth
projections of Hong Kong and China, the Group expects it is full of
challenges in 2019. Looking ahead to 2019, the Company will stay
in focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, | would like to thank our dedicated employees for their
invaluable contributions and enthusiasm in their work. Their zeal
in discharging duties and responsibilities will ensure the success
of our Group.

Wu Ming Gai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March, 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
a revenue of HK$10,812,000 as compared to HK$10,570,000 in
the prior year, representing an increase of 2.3%. The increment
in revenue was mainly due to increase of interest income during
the year. The Group recorded a realised loss of HK$45,350,000
(2017: HK$84,437,000) and fair value loss of HK$10,817,000
(2017: HK$108,461,000) on listed securities. The Group recorded
a realised loss of HK$10,770,000 (2017: nil) and an unrealised
loss of HK$3,681,000 (2017: HK$14,328,000) on unlisted
securities during the year. During the year, impairment losses of
various loan notes of approximately HK$4,992,000 and deposits
of approximately HK$351,000 were recognised. With the impact
of unfavourable performance of certain publicly traded securities
held by the Group and fair value loss of certain unlisted securities
during the year, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$69,782,000 as compared to a loss of
HK$205,508,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2018, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$135,391,000 (2017: HK$174,734,000). The
net assets significantly decreased 22.5% when compared to
the prior year is mainly due to the decrease in fair value of the
listed shares. The financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss decreased from HK$201,399,000 as at 31 December 2017
to HK$85,069,000 as at 31 December 2018 and the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income of
HK$35,176,000 (2017: nil) was recognised during the year.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The growth momentum of Hong Kong economy has slowed
since the beginning of 2018. Hong Kong GDP growth reached
3.7% and 2.9% year-on-year in real terms in the first three
quarters of 2018 and the third quarter of 2018 respectively.

China posted GDP growth of 6.6% for 2018, slightly above the
target set by officials last year of 6.5%. It is the weakest showing
for China in nearly three decades. Growth in the last quarter of the
year slowed to 6.4%

During the financial year, the macroeconomic and geopolitical
environment were full of turbulence due to outbreak of several
unexpected events. The president of the United States of America
(the “US”) announced to place tariff on imports from China.
As worries over the US-China trade war and China’s slowing
economy and rising interest rates pushed the market down from
an all-time high, Hong Kong stocks dropped 13.6% during 2018,
the worst performance in seven years.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The growth of Hong Kong’s economy is now projected by the
Hong Kong government to slow to between 2% and 3% in 2019.
China sets lower GDP target between 6% and 6.5% for 2019.

The external environment is of high relevance to the economy
and financial market in Hong Kong. In term of the slow growth
projections of Hong Kong and China, the Group expects it is full of
challenges in 2019. Looking ahead to 2019, the Company will stay
in focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had available funds of
HK$4,779,000 which were mainly placed in banks as general
working capital. Bank balances held by the Group were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group had shareholders’ funds of HK$135,391,000 at 31
December 2018 compared to HK$174,734,000 at 31 December
2017, representing a decrease of approximately 22.5%.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had borrowings of
HK$57,654,000 (2017: HK$44,224,000). The gearing ratio for the
Group was 42.6% (2017: 25.3%) which represents the ratio of the
Group’s borrowings to the net asset value of the Group.

The Group did not have any capital expenditure commitment
as at 31 December 2018.

Save as the placing of new shares mentioned under the
heading of “Fund raising activities” below, there was no significant
change in the Group’s capital structure for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DM

INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Company held eighteen investments as of 31 December
2018, comprising eight equity securities listed in Hong Kong, two
unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong, one private equity fund
in the Cayman Islands, three loan notes issued by a private entity
in Bermuda and two loan notes issued by private entities in China,
one item of interests in a private entity in Hong Kong and one item
of interests in a private entity in Anguilla.

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Company
discloses its ten largest investments and all individual investments
with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s gross assets with brief
description of the investee companies are provided in the notes
21 to 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

Significant investments held and their performance

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$10,812,000 as compared to HK$10,570,000 in the
prior year, representing an increase of approximately 2.3%. The
increment in revenue was due to increase of interest income from
unlisted investments during the year.

With the impact of unfavourable performance of certain
publicly traded securities held by the Group and fair value loss
of certain unlisted securities during the year, the Group recorded
a realised loss of HK$45,350,000 (2017: HK$84,437,000) and
an unrealised loss of HK$10,817,000 (2017: HK$108,461,000)
on listed securities. The Group recorded a realised loss of
HK$10,770,000 (2017: nil) and an unrealised loss of HK$3,681,000
(2017: HK$14,328,000) on unlisted convertible bond/private
equity fund during the year. During the year, impairment losses of
various loan notes of approximately HK$4,992,000 and deposits of
approximately HK$351,000 were recognised.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held trading securities of
HK$31,812,000 (2017: HK$90,326,000). The decrease was mainly
due to the net realised loss on disposal of trading securities
of HK$45,350,000 and fair value loss on trading securities of
HK$10,817,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s unlisted investments
(comprised of convertible bonds designated at fair value through
profit or loss and loans and receivables) were HK$144,460,000
(2017: HK$117,619,000). Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments was HK$15,764,000 (2017: HK$7,945,000).

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund raising activities

Placing of 14,000,000 ordinary Shares under general
mandate of the Company (the “Placing A”)

On 11 May 2018, the Company and Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (the “Placing Agent A”) entered
into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement A”), pursuant
to which the Company has appointed the Placing Agent A to
procure, on a best efforts basis, not less than six placees who
were professional investors (has the same meaning as ascribed
thereto in Part 1 of Schedule 1 to the SFO and any rules made
thereunder) (the “Professional Investors”) to subscribe for up to
14,000,000 ordinary Shares at a price of HK$0.79 per Share (the
“Placing Shares A”), representing (i) approximately 16.3% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
Placing Agreement A; and (ii) approximately 14.0% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the Placing Shares A. The closing price of the Shares as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 11 May 2018, being the date of
the Placing Agreement A, was HK$0.81 per Share. The maximum
net proceeds from the Placing A amounted to approximately
HK$10,730,000 which was intended to be utilised for repayment of
short term loan and payment of interest in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$8,800,000 and the remaining balance was
intended to use for investment on listed securities. The net price
per Placing Share A was approximately HK$0.77. Details of the
Placing A were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 11 May 2018 and 29 May 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DM

Placing of 19,980,000 ordinary Shares under general
mandate of the Company (the “Placing B”)

On 21 September 2018, the Company and Hong Kong Wealthy
Trade Limited (the “Placing Agent B”) entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement B”), pursuant to which the
Company has appointed the Placing Agent B to procure, on a best
efforts basis, not less than six placees who were Professional
Investors to subscribe for up to 19,980,000 ordinary Shares at a
price of HK$1 per Share (the “Placing Shares B”), representing
(i) approximately 20.0% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the Placing Agreement B; and (ii)
approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Placing Shares B.
The closing price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 21 September 2018, being the date of the Placing Agreement
B, was HK$0.495 per Share. The maximum net proceeds from
the Placing B amounted to approximately HK$19,730,000 which
was intended to be utilised for investment in the listed and/or
unlisted securities in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$10,000,000 and the remaining balance was intended to
use for repayment of the Group’s payables and as the Group’s
general working capital. The net price per Placing Share B was
approximately HK$0.99. Details of the Placing B were set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 21 September 2018
and 12 October 2018.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWRDM

As at 31 December 2018, the net proceeds of the placings

had been utilised as follows:

R-ZB-N\F+-_HA=+—R0 EEREIEF
MERAWMT :

Date of Net proceeds Intended use of net  Actual use of
announcement Event raised proceeds proceeds
AEBH B1E EXMBNERE FENEFHERTAZ FSREERAR
11 May 2018 Placing of 14,000,000 Approximately (i) Approximately Approximately

(completed on
29 May 2018)

ordinary Shares under
general mandate of the
Company

ZE-\FRA+—H REAQE —BEERE
(R=ZE—N\FAA 14,000,000 p% I 38 A%
—t+hB®EK)

HK$10,730,000

#910,730,000
BT

HK$8,800,000
for repayment of
short term loan
and payment of
interest

(ii) Approximately
HK$1,930,000
will be used for
investment on
listed securities

(i) #98,800,0007% 7T A3
REERHERR
EAREIY-)

(i) #71,930,0007% 7T A
RiIRE £ &5

HK$8,600,000 was
used for repayment
of short term loan
and payment of
interest

Approximately
HK$2,130,000 was
used for investment
on listed securities

#78,600,0007% 7T A 7
BERRE RN
LB

#92,130,0007% 7T A 7%
BE EHE S

21 September 2018
(completed on 12
October 2018)

Placing of 19,980,000
ordinary Shares under
general mandate of the
Company

—E—\%hA RIEAD A — RIE RS
—+—H 19,980,000 1% & 38 A%
(R=F—NE+ A
+=B5R®)

Approximately
HK$19,730,000

#919,730,000
BT

(i) Approximately
HK$10,000,000
for investment in
the listed and/or
unlisted securities

(ii) Approximately
HK$9,730,000
will be used for
repayment of the
Group’s payables
and as the Group’s
general working
capital

(i) #710,000,0007% 7T
BREEETR,/
HIEETEF

(i) #79,730,000/%5 7t #%
AREERSEE
NRERIERESE
H-—RgEEES

Approximately
HK$10,000,000 was
used for investment
in the unlisted
securities

Approximately
HK$5,030,000
was used for
repayment of the
Group’s payable
and operation
expenses and the
remaining balance
of approximately
HK$4.7 million
was maintained at
the Group’s bank
account and will be
utilised as intended

#110,000,0007% 7T F 1
REFLMES

495,030,0007% 7T A R
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NEBIRITERS @ I
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DM

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 4 full-
time employees, including the executive directors of the Company.
Employees’ remuneration are fixed and determined with reference
to the market remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company for non-executive
directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and that
for the employees, including the executive directors and senior
management, is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties and in line with market practice.
The remuneration policy is to ensure that the pay levels are
competitive and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees. No director, or any of his associates, or executive is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The key components of the Company’s remuneration package
include basic salary plus other allowances, discretionary cash
bonus and mandatory provident fund. As a long-term incentive
plan and with the aim at motivating employees in the continued
pursuit of the Company’s goal and objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Review of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
covering major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defense, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defense, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defense is effective. As the final
line of defense, the Audit Committee of the Company, with the
professional advices and opinions from the external professional
consultant by whom internal audit work of the Group was
conducted on annual basis, ensures that the first and second
lines of defense are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken by the external professional consultants, the
external auditor also assessed the adequacy and effectiveness
of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of
their statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s
recommendations are adopted and enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls will be made.

EXPOSURES TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group has no significant exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and, therefore, did not employ any
financial instruments to hedge such exposures.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2018, no asset was pledged by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DM

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Change of Domicile

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 11 March
2019, the special resolutions in relation to (i) the Change of
Domicile and the Adoption of the Memorandum of Continuance
and the New Bye-laws (“Change of Domicile”), and (ii) the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) comprising, inter
alia, the capital reduction (“Capital Reduction”) and the share
subdivision (“Share Subdivision”) were duly passed by way of poll.
Details of the Change of Domicile and Capital Reorganisation are
as follows:

(1) Change of Domicile

To change the domicile of the Company from the Cayman
Islands to Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company under the laws
of Bermuda. The continuation of the Company in Bermuda does
not create a new legal entity or prejudice or affect the continuity
of the Company. The Company will continue to maintain a
principal place of business in Hong Kong. In connection with the
Change of Domicile, the Company will adopt the Memorandum of
Continuance and the New Bye-laws in compliance with the laws
of Bermuda to replace, respectively, the existing memorandum
of association and the articles of association of the Company,
which will take effect immediately after the Change of Domicile
becoming effective.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(2) Capital Reorganisation

Following the Change of Domicile becoming effective, the
Capital Reorganisation will be implemented as follows:

(i) Reduction of Share Premium — the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company be reduced to nil and the credit arising
from such reduction be transferred to an existing account
of the Company designated as the contributed surplus
account of the Company. Thereafter, approximately
HK$184.5 million standing to the credit of the contributed
surplus account of the Company be applied in full towards
offsetting the entire amount of the accumulated losses
of the Company as permitted under the New Bye-laws
and the Companies Act. As at the date of this report, the
Company has a credit balance of HK$200.4 million in its
share premium account;

(ii) Capital Reduction — the par value of each of the issued
existing Shares to be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10
per issued existing Share by the cancellation of the paid
up share capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.90
per issued existing Share by way of a reduction of capital,
such that the par value of the issued existing Shares will
be reduced to HK$0.10 each. The credit arising from the
Capital Reduction will be transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of
the Companies Act and be applied for such purposes as
permitted by all applicable laws and the Memorandum of
Continuance and the New Bye-laws of the Company and
as the Board considers appropriate; and

(iii

=

Share sub-division — immediately following the Capital
Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued existing
Shares with par value of HK$1.00 each be subdivided into
10 new Shares with par value of HK$0.10 each.

The Change of Domicile and the Capital Reorganisation
are conditional upon satisfaction of the respective conditions.
Therefore, the Change of Domicile and the Capital Reorganisation
may or may not proceed.

Details of the Change of Domicile and Capital Reorganisation
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 23 January
2019, 25 January 2019, 1 February 2019 and 11 March 2019.

Investment manager

On 28 February 2019, the Company entered into the renewal
agreement with Tiger Securities Asset Management Company
Limited to renew the investment management services period
from 28 February 2019 to 31 August 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEREREBE

1. Background

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
(the “ESG Report”) has been prepared under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). It sets out the
Group’s actions and performance on sustainability issues in a
transparent and open manner with the intention of increasing
stakeholders’ confidence in and understanding of the Group.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Group are investments in
securities listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with potential for earning growth and capital
appreciation. The Group mainly invests Hong Kong listed
companies and unlisted companies including but not limited
to real estate property, financial and electronic payment
service providers. This ESG Report covers the Group’s overall
performance in two subject areas, namely, Environmental and
Social of the business operations in Hong Kong from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Period under Review”), unless
otherwise stated.

On 23 July 2018, the Board of the Company announced that
the English name of the Company has been changed from “Huge
China Holdings Limited” to “Cocoon Holdings Limited” and the
dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company has been changed
from ‘B EERERAA to “FEAXSZERABR AR with
effect from 29 June 2018.

2. Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

To identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on this ESG Report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
engagement sessions. For instance, investors could voice out
their concern and view on the Group’s policies, annual reports,
financial statements, circulars, announcements and notices via
email address provided on the Company’s website, or through
Annual General Meeting. In addition, the Company also set up
a whistleblowing hotline to enable the stakeholders to discuss
and review areas of attention which could help the business of
the Group to meet its potential growth and be prepared for future
challenges.

3. Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on the approach and
performance of ESG via the email address of cs@cocoon.holdings.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4 The Group’s Sustainability Mission and Vision
Mission
The Group is focusing to unlock the value of emerging
companies both in China and Hong Kong by directly invest in
emerging private and listed companies in Hong Kong, with the

emphasis on those focusing on high growth from the domestic
market.

Vision on ESG

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders and enhances
shareholder’s value. The Group is committed to accounting for
its shareholders with a highly transparent and open attitude. The
Group also holds a high standard in business ethics and invests
in sustainable businesses. The Group is committed to improve
quality of the communities and the environment, whilst providing
long-term returns to its stakeholders.

The table underneath showed aspects on the ESG Guide
to be assessed and those ESG issues were determined to be
material to the Group.

RS HBRERBE

4, XEENITHEREEORER
&
AEBBINBBEXRRENEEFTEANLAR
EHARKEBERTEEEEMEAARNEER T2
EEREMTSENSERAF -

FRHRE @ RERNES

RIFOARERRSIRE - RERRRES AN
BN WRERREE AKREHNASEEAKMA
BMOEEARRAE ASEEBXERLTARER
RE IRENAFEEROER - ARERINK
EHERRRER ARAEEZARERADRE

TRIFRE HERERBREEINDAFTE
FENEEARBEREASEME BREANIR

BoungkEBEAE -

(RIE HER HEAEEMSE
ESG Aspects as set forth in ERBEESDRMR Material ESG issues for REXHNEE
ESG Guide MEBE - HEREAREE the Group HERERHAE
(A) Environmental (A) R%E
A1 Emissions Al BERRY Emission from town gas or HRETERE RN
Vehicle
A2 Use of Resources A2 BRERA Use of energy and paper 5 A g R & 4 ok
A3 Environment and Natural A3 IRIER KA AR  Air pollution =R 53
Resources
(B) Social (B) #&
B1 Employment B1 Ef& Labour practices ATER
B2 Health and Safety B2 f@Ri%L%E Workplace health and safety TEMERERELZ S
B3 Development and B3 # R ki Employee development and EE#REKEI
Training training
B4 Labour Standards B4 4 T %8| Anti-child and forced labour RET REHIST
B5 Supply Chain B5 {pEfEEE Supply chain management i pE g2 5 18
Management
B6 Product Responsibility B6 Em=aff Product responsibility EmEE
B7 Anti-corruption B7 RES Anti-corruption, fraud prevention ~&755 » [ 1F#F & & %G
and anti-money laundering L2y
B8 Community Investment B8 tEI&EE Community programs, employee #t[&/5% B8 & TR%E

volunteering and donation
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEREREBE

A. Environmental

The Group considers environmental protection an essential
component of sustainable and responsible business. The Group
strives to negative impacts on the environment and to seek
environmental-friendly methods of operation.

Type of emission sources that the Group involved during
the Period under Review was mainly electricity and paper. The
Group’s business did not involve in production-related air, water,
and land pollutions which are regulated under Hong Kong laws
and regulations. There were no water consumption and packaging
materials involved in the Group’s business operation. During the
Period under Review, the total floor area coverage of the Group
was 115.8m2 (2017: 115.8m?2).

A11.Emissions Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption

Since the Company did not have neither town fuel and town
gas consumption nor motor vehicle during the Period under
Review, therefore no emissions data applied.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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A1.2.Greenhouse Gas Emission

RS HBRERBE

MLBEREBHR

KPI
HARENER
% increase/
2018 2017 Unit (decrease)
—E-N\EF —E—tF By #whn CRD) %
Scope 1 g E1
Direct Emission H # #F N/A 38 F N/A 738 A Tonnes M —
Scope 2 &1 2
Indirect
Emission 4 BE 1R 3.63 5.69 Tonnes M (36%)
Scope 3 g E3
Other indirect
Emission H b F 2 HE B 1.73 1.59 Tonnes [ 9%
Total A&t 5.36 7.28 Tonnes & (27%)

During the Period under Review, there was 5.36 tonnes (2017:
7.28 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases
(mainly carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from
the Group’s operation, The annual emission intensity of the Group
during the Period under Review was 0.05 tCO2e/m? (2017: 0.06
tCO2e/m?). The decrease of annual emission intensity was mainly
due to the efficient energy control during the Period under Review.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

A1.3 Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generated no hazardous waste in its operation.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group’s operation was mainly
office paper but the management of the Group believed that the
impact of non-hazardous waste arose from the waste paper is
insignificant.

Office Paper

The Group practices paper saving initiatives, such as
encouraging employees to use duplex printing for internal
documents and adopt environmental-friendly photocopier. The
Group strives to tackle the paper wastage problems in offices
by establishing a paperless office. Hence, the Group advocates
electronic storage and communication, such as receiving fax by
email instead of printing, and delivering reports to shareholders in
electronic copies.

Apart from reducing paper waste at source, paper recycling
also contributes to conserving resources such as forests, energy
and water. To efficiently recycle used paper, waste segregation
and collection are particularly important. The Group provides
ample facilities and procedures for paper waste collection so as to
enhance recycling efficiency.

A2.1 Use of resource — Electricity

During the Period under Review, the electricity consumption
of the Group was 6,723kWh (2017: 10,514kWh). The decrease
of electricity consumption was mainly the result of the Group
encouraged its staff to adopt energy saving measures (such as
switching off unnecessary lighting and electronic appliances)
through reminders and emails.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

MIBEERERY
AREEREPITELEZTERY - AKELKE
EBELNEETRZNIZ/ANIZR/A AW

AREEREAL RARANBERENYEY
TEA -
UY=L

AEBIRIEE BAER  fIEEEE SR
MXUERAEmEIE > WRARFREDH - AEH
HARBEBELERMAEREE R AENHRR
REME - Bt - AEEIREBEFFFH AR - HlW
BREBEBMIFNREBREER  URAEFEIARR
REBE®HRS o

BT HRRERADEFORE - AKEKRINE BIRNR
EM  RREKEER - BT BB ER - BE
MOBRRKRELEER - AEERHITENHELRK
SERBRIEF - ARDEWHE -

MIERER : 8

REEE  AEENBEE A6,723FEE (=
T—+tF 10514F ) cHEERPFERBHR
AEEEBIRENEDEEE S T FREETEHE i ()
MEFIE NN BB N ERE) o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A3 Environmental and Natural Resources

The air pollution is mainly produced by photocopiers, stale air
drawn in from outside through poorly located fresh air inlets and
bacteria that enter the office.

In order to improve the indoor air quality, a range of air
pollution emission measures have been implemented by the
Group and they were:

* Ensure air inlets are away from any source of pollutants
and sufficient ventilation systems;

» Clean all air units regularly (e.g. air inlets, air outlets and
filters); and

 Perform regular maintenance on carpet and furniture
upholstery.

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to
environmental laws and regulations for the Period under Review.

B. Social
B1.Employment and Labour Practices

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retain talents. The Group possesses a Remuneration
Committee, which regularly reviews its remuneration policy. The
Remuneration Committee ensures packages offered by the Group
are appealing to employees and in line with the market trend. The
Group had a total number of 4 employees as of 31 December
2018 and 2017, in which 100% was Chinese full time staff.
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(a) Employee’s Age and Gender Distribution

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HBRERBE

(a) 1E B Fie R It 5 7

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Age Group Fi4 R Male Female Male Female
5 z 3 =z
0-15 0Z£155% 0% 0% 0% 0%
16-18 16 £185% 0% 0% 0% 0%
19-30 19%2305% 0% 25% 0% 25%
31-45 31E 4553 50% 0% 50% 0%
46-60 46 £607% 25% 0% 25% 0%
=61/>61 61553k A £ 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total & &t 75% 25% 75% 25%
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
By gender & 1% 5l Male Female Male Female
E:] z S z
Under employment <& 75% 25% 75% 25%

Employees are entitled to discretionary cash bonus
and mandatory provident fund. Additional fringe benefits
include office insurance, employee compensation
insurance, directors' and officers' liability insurance.
Various types of paid leave are also offered on top of
statutory requirement including annual leave, sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave and wedding leave. Employees
working overtime are entitled to overtime allowance and
compensation by time off. The Group may also at its sole
discretion, to grant share options to employees as a long-
term incentive aiming to motivate employees pursuing
Group’s goal and objectives, Employees including
directors can subscribe shares of the Company based on
their performance and contribution to the Group.

The Group committed to ensure safe and healthy
working environment for its employees and to inspire and
strengthens workforce regardless of their age, gender and
ethnical backgrounds.
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(b) Turnover Rate by Age Group and Gender

RS HBRERBE
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Age Group F i 48 B Male Female Male Female
5 z 3 z
0-15 0= 155% 0% 0% 0% 0%
16-18 16 £1875% 0% 0% 0% 0%
19-30 19%305% 0% 0% 0% 0%
31-45 31E 4553 0% 0% 50% 50%
46-60 46 £607% 0% 0% 0% 0%
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E:] z 3 Z
Resigned staff BEE T 0% 0% 50% 50%

The Group will continue to provide a well-structured
and caring environment to its employees to raise their
sense of belonging and work efficiency at the Group.

B2 Employee Health and Safety

The Group regularly provides notices to remind employees on
health and safety measures at work, such be guidelines on using
electronic appliances.

During the Period under Review, the Group had no non-
compliance case regarding violation of relevant laws and
regulations on occupational health and safety.

(a) Occupational Health and Safety Data

Health and Safety REHEZZ

Number of work- ETITEFERITHT
related fatalities

Lost days due to work [ T &M 18 L £
injury IERH

AEEREESHERRARBRENEHBE
MERE  URSHEASENEBRE TIERE -

B2 EEREHZZ

AEBEERB LB REESFHEIFRESR
ZEMERE PINEBEREFRHENIES -

REEHE AEEYBEEHERE @BERER
B2 HEEERRAINTARESR -

(a) Bt X 278 22 2 (75

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E 4
Male Female Male Female
5 z = z
0% 0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0% 0%

Annual Report 20185

23



24

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

B3 Development and Training

The package offered by the Group in relation to development
and training includes training covering topics of business
operations, policy and procedures of the Group, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director. Ongoing trainings,
briefings and seminars would also be provided to staff after the
induction to refresh their professional knowledge and skills.
During the Period under Review, a total of 90 hours (2017: 83
hours) of training courses was conducted whilst the average
training hour per employee was 22.5 hours (2017: 20 hours).

In addition to above, the Group also encourages and supports
employees' personal development through attending external
trainings and special early leave would be granted for training
purpose. Thus, various types of suitable seminars or training
courses will be recommended to employees via email and they
can choose either registered personally or through the Company.

The Group also provides communication channel to its
employees. Notices, emails, team briefings serve as the major
channels of communication among the management and frontline
staff. Performance appraisals and annual surveys also provided
platforms for the management and frontline staff to evaluate
their performances and voice out their expectations to the
Group’s future development. During the Period under Review, the
Group organized a Winter Solstice Dinner to appraise their past
contribution and raise employees' sense of belongings.

B4 Labour Standard

No child or forced labour were employed in the Group’s
operations during the Period under Review which was in
compliance with the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong in terms of employment management.

The Group lists specific requirements on advertisement to
hire the most suitable candidate. All resume, original identification
card, original certificate should be first checked by human
resources (HR) department during interview. HR department also
contacts candidate’s preceded employer for reference.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, race, sexual orientation, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability, pregnancy or any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law. The Group also
appreciates the importance of cultural diversity in the development
of the Group, and employs employees in a wide range of ages,
genders, and ethnicities.

In particular, the Group adopted a Board Diversity function
under which the Board composition includes members from with
different skills, industry knowledge and experience, education,
background and other qualities without discrimination.

During the Period under Review, the Group had no non-
compliance case regarding violation of relevant child labour and
forced labour laws.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has policy in place on obtaining quotations from
more than one supplier for procurement of all equipment and
products.

B6 Product Responsibility

As stated in the Group’s Employee Manual, insider
information is prohibited to disclose to third party, and so
consumer data and privacy matters relating to services are
protected. The Group’s business operation did not involve in any
product or service related complaints.

During the Period under Review, the Group had no non-
compliance case regarding violations of relevant laws and
regulations on product responsibility and data privacy during the
Period under Review.
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RE  HEREREBE

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group commits to managing all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness as its
core values. All directors and employees are required to strictly
follow the Group’s policy to prevent potential bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Employees are regularly reminded
about anti-corruption policies through memos. Whistle-blowing
procedures on misconduct and malpractice (including corruption)
are also established in the Group’s policy. When suspicious case
is received, the Group would undergo investigation procedures
with secured protection on complainant’s confidentially.

B8 Community Investment

To maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
the Group acknowledged the importance of enhancing its
transparency to the community. The community is regularly
informed of updated news and directions of the Group through
circulars, announcements and annual reports posted on the
Company’s website. The Group is currently planning its direction
on focus area of community engagement and types of resources
to be contributed.

Future Directions from the Group

Future direction would be discussed with Company’s
stakeholders in the next reporting period.

Conclusion

The Group has conducted the ESG report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social, Governmental Reporting Guide
(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules), all the information available
for the reporting period are included in this report. The Group
is committed to continue the ESG reporting on a regular basis
and to improve on policies and procedures to the management,
measurement and monitoring system of the ESG related
strategies that will facilitate a more sustainable business growth.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the year are investments in securities listed on recognised
stock exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s revenue for the year comprised interest earned
from bank deposits, loans and receivables and convertible bonds.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and
the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion & Analysis” from pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 15 of
this annual report respectively. The outlook of the Company’s
business is discussed in the “Chairman Statement” from pages
4 to 5 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this
annual report particularly in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2018, can
be found in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
Environmental policies and performance are discussed in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” from pages 16 to
26 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s investments are partially carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
while the Company itself was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with its shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman
Islands, the British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this annual report, we have complied in material respects with
the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands,
the British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group principally engages in investments in listed
and unlisted securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be
involved in the operation of business. The investee companies
and the investment manager are good working partners creating
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide favourable career
development opportunities for its employees.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 73.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 75 and note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
and under the heading of “Fund raising activities” in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December
2018, according to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$8,058,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association or applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 166.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have share option scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issues
shares were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end
of the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Wu Ming Gai

Chan Carman Wing Yan (appointed on 25 February 2019)
Wong Chung Yan Sammy

William Keith Jacobsen

Chen Albert (appointed on 1 August 2018)

Chan Man Yi (appointed on 21 August 2018)

Leung Yin Ting (appointed on 14 December 2018)

Jiang Qian (appointed on 14 December 2018)

Chau Wai Hing (resigned on 18 February 2019)

Mak Hing Keung Thomas (resigned on 26 November 2018)
Wong Ching Wan (retired on 28 June 2018)

Law Siu Hung Paul (retired on 28 June 2018)

Sio Chan In Devin (resigned on 14 December 2018)

Hui Man Ho Ivan (retired on 28 June 2018)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Mr. William Keith
Jacobsen, Mr. Wu Ming Gai and Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy,
being the longest in office, shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Chen
Albert, Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting, Mr. Jiang Qian and
Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan, the newly appointed directors will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The above retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, Mr. Chen Albert and Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy are non-executive directors.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, Mr. Jiang Qian and Ms. Leung Yin Ting are
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards their
independence of the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive directors is independent of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Mr. Wu Ming Gai’s interest in contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
every director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the
Company against all liability incurred by him as such director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the directors and officers of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of directors are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, aged 43, joined the Company in July
2015. He was re-designated from a non-executive director to
an executive director of the Company effective from 1 March
2016 and appointed as the chairman of the board of directors
of the Company in February 2019. He is also a director of each
subsidiary of our Company except Studio V Limited. Mr. Wu is
one of the directors and responsible officers of Tiger Securities
Asset Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”) (as
the investment manager of the Company since 1 March 2016).
Mr. Wu is currently licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (assets management)
regulated activities accredited to Tiger Securities. He has obtained
the Honor Diploma of Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University in July 1999. He has over 12 years of management
experience in fund accounting and asset management. He was
the chief operating officer of Tiger Securities from 2007 to 2012
responsible for the overall operation of fund management. Since
2013, he has been the director of the same company responsible
for the general management of regulated activities.

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan, aged 39, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company, and the chairman and a
member of investment committee of the Company on 25 February
2019. She is one of the responsible officers of Bradbury Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Limited (“BAM”). Ms. Chan is currently
a licensed person to carry out type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”). Ms.
Chan holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
the University of Wales, Newport, United Kingdom. She has
previous work experiences in Hong Kong, Canada and Europe.
She is experienced in dealing in securities, fund management,
corporate management, corporate finance and managing
investment companies listed under Chapter 21 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Before
joining BAM as a responsible officer in 2016, Miss Chan acted as
a type 4 (Advising on Securities) and type 9 (Asset Management)
responsible officer, executive director and chief operating officer
of Iridium Capital Limited, a SFC licensed corporation since
2015. From 2011 to 2015, Ms. Chan worked for CU Investment
Management Limited, which was the investment manager of
National Investments Fund Limited (stock code: 1227), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Miss Chan was an independent
non-executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited (stock code:
8130), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, during
the period from July 2015 to November 2017.
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen, aged 52, is a non-executive
Director and member of investment committee of the Company
since 17 November 2014. Mr. Jacobsen is the chief executive
officer of a licensed corporation to advise on corporate finance
matters. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Jacobsen has more
than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and business
development. He was an executive director of Auto ltalia
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 720) for the period from 1 January 2012
to 17 October 2015. He was a non-executive director of Ping
An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as
Madex International (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 231) for
the period from 12 August 2015 to 30 September 2016. He was
also an independent non-executive director of King Stone Energy
Group Limited (stock code: 663), Qingdao Holdings International
Limited (formerly known as Hycomm Wireless Limited) (stock
code: 499), Hongda Financial Holding Limited (formerly known
as Perception Digital Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1822),
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock code: 2312) and
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (stock code: 723) for the
period from 26 September 2008 to 30th September 2011, from
20 June 2008 to 27 September 2014, from 7 January 2013 to 29
August 2014, from 1 February 2013 to 30 April 2015 and from 4
January 2013 to 29 December 2017 respectively. Mr. Jacobsen is
an independent non-executive director and the member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
abc Multiactive Limited (stock code: 8131). He is an independent
non-executive director and chairman of remuneration committee,
a member of audit committee and nomination committee of KK
Culture Holdings Limited (stock code: 550).

Mr. Chen Albert, aged 31, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 August 2018. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and Computer Science of University
of Michigan in the United States of America. Mr. Chen is currently
the head of blockchain department of a technology company in
crypto-currency industry. He is also founder and chief consultant
of a consultancy company, which provides advisory services on
start-ups on physical product design, engineering and production.
Mr. Chen has over 7 years’ experience in his entrepreneurship.
Mr. Chen is a son of Mr. Chen Chien Yeh, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, aged 54, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 23
March 2018, and re-designated as a non-executive director on 14
December 2018. He is currently a member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Social
Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has over
28 years of financial planning & modeling, investment analysis
& execution and project & liquidity management experience in
banking and commercial industry. Mr. Wong had held senior
management positions in various subsidiaries of certain
companies listed in Hong Kong. He is now also a director of a
private securities company in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is currently a
director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Chan Man Yi, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 21 August 2018. She
is currently the chairman and a member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan was graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s degree in professional accounting and has over
25 years of experience in pension and provident fund industry.
Ms. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Chan was the company secretary of Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8159) from 4 December
2012 to 10 January 2019 and she is currently an independent
non-executive director of Orient Securities International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8001), both companies are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Yin Ting, aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 14
December 2018. She is currently a member of each of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Leung is a barrister in Hong Kong and was called to the Bar of
Hong Kong in 2013. She is currently an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and has achieved the specialist qualification in insolvency of
HKICPA in 2016. Ms. Leung obtained a Bachelor degree of Laws
from University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2004, and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 2006. Before pursuing her career in Law, she has more than
four years’ audit experience in the Big Four accounting firms in
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Jiang Qian, aged 40, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 14 December 2018.
He is currently the chairman and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. From September 2007 to November
2009, Mr. Jiang worked at an attorney at Davis Polk & Wardwell
LLP, where he was involved in the public offering and bond
issuance. From January 2010 to November 2011, he worked as
a counsel at King & Wood Law Firm (&t 7 f % 75 F7), where
his practice focuses on capital market and public offerings.
From January 2012 to January 2015, he served as a managing
director at Bank of New York Mellon, where he was responsible
for the management of its legal affairs. From February 2015 to
December 2015, Mr. Jiang served as a managing director at
China Commodity Merchant Trading Group Limited, a subsidiary
of Elion Resources Group ({&7%|& R % ®), a company mainly
engaged in ecological restoration and clean energy, where he was
responsible for its investment and financing in Hong Kong. From
December 2015 to June 2018, he served as co-head of the legal
department at China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings
Company Limited (F BRI & & (BEK) ZERAERRQA) (formerly
known as Great Wall Pan Asia International Investment Company
Limited (& ¥k 3R & B & % & & R 2 7)), a company mainly
engaged in property investment and financial business, where he
was responsible for the management of its legal affairs in Hong
Kong. Since November 2018, he has been serving as a partner
at Addleshaw Goddard (Hong Kong) LLP, where his practice
focuses on debt capital markets and special situation transactions
such as restructuring. Mr. Jiang obtained his bachelor’s degree in
economic law from East China University of Political Science and
Law (ZER KA KNE) in the PRC in July 1999, and his master of
laws degree from Northwestern University in the United States in
June 2007. Mr. Jiang obtained the legal professional qualification
certificate in the PRC in February 2000 and was admitted and
licensed to practise as an attorney and counselor in the state of
New York of the United States in July 2008. Mr. Jiang is currently
an independent non-executive director of China Gingko Education
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1851),
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, none of the directors or the chief
executive of the Company had, nor were they taken to or deemed
to have under Part XV of the SFO, any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Listing
Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors or chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporates.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had been notified
of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
position, being 5% or more of the Company’s shares and
underlying shares which are required to be recorded in the
register of interests in shares and short positions maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of

total issued shares

of the Company

as at 31 December 2018

LSRR
Number of ordinary —E-N\F
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interests shares held +=ZA=+—H%2
BRERESEB BH EmtE FEEEEREAE ERITROLHEBE I L
Chen Chien Yeh Beneficial owner/ 4,632,000 (L) 3.86%
Beneficial interest
BRE % ERBEREAN Exk
Interest in controlled corporation/ 20,644,930 (L) 17.22%
Corporate interest (Note 1)
2 lE Bk B S (Htat1)
EverCare Finance Company Beneficial owner/ 20,644,930 (L) 17.22%
Limited Beneficial interest (Note 1)
Kz LA R A A EnlAN BEankn (Ktat1)
Kor Sing Mung Michael Beneficial owner/ 16,844,930 (L) 14.05%

Beneficial interest

EnEEA EiE
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Percentage of

total issued shares

of the Company

as at 31 December 2018

(SR NVNRCTDS
Number of ordinary —E-N\EF
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interests shares held +=ZA=+—8H%2
BREEEB BH, ERtE FEEEEREE ERTROLEEDL
Ip Siu Hang Interest in controlled corporation/ 14,806,000 (L) 12.35%
Corporate interest (Note 2)
BT ZEGEEEREEER (Htat2)
HF Long China Asset Beneficial owner/ 14,806,000 (L) 12.35%
Management Ltd. Beneficial interest (Note 2)
EEREEEEEAGR LA EnEAAN/ BEaksx (Bfit2)
Twu Kai Ting Beneficial owner/ 6,240,000 (L) 5.20%
Beneficial interest
RIE EnAN Banks
Solution Smart Holdings Limited Beneficial owner/ 5,174,000 (L) 4.31%
Beneficial interest (Note 3)
ERBEAAN/ BEnlksx (H17#3)
SW Venture Asia Limited Interest in controlled corporation/ 5,174,000 (L) 4.31%
Corporate interest (Note 3)
REfEEER LB ER (Kt:£3)
Yeung Shing Wai Interest in controlled corporation/ 5,174,000 (L) 4.31%
Corporate interest (Note 3)
5K & Rt EERRLEEER (H7#3)
(L) — Long Position (L) —F&
(S) — Short Position (S) — K=

Notes:

1. EverCare Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong, is wholly owned by Mr. Chen Chien Yeh. Accordingly, Mr. Chen
Chien Yeh is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by EverCare
Finance Company Limited.

2. HF Long China Asset Management Ltd., a company incorporated in
Hong Kong, is wholly owned by Mr. Ip Siu Hang. Accordingly, Mr. Ip
Siu Hang is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by HF Long
China Asset Management Ltd.
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3. Solution Smart Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by
SW Venture Asia Limited. SW Venture Asia Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Shing Wai. Accordingly, Mr.
Yeung Shing Wai and SW Venture Asia Limited are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Solution Smart Holdings Limited
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Details of significant management contracts in relation to the
Company’s business are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is an investment holding company. In the opinion
of the directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of the
Group’s customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 36(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions are constituted exempted
transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which
are carried out and disclosed in compliance with the relevant
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters including a review of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

On 19 May 2015, BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company and Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was
appointed by the Directors to fill such casual vacancy.

Elite Partners, who acted as auditor of the Company for the
financial years of 2015 and 2016, resigned and World Link CPA
Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company on 6 January
2017.

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have been audited by World
Link CPA Limited. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint World Link
CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Cocoon Holdings Limited
Wu Ming Gai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining high standards of corporate governance in

everything we do.

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the
smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to high standards of corporate governance with a view

to being transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as its own code on corporate

governance practices.

The Company had met the relevant code provisions set
out in the Code during the year, except the deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides that the roles and
responsibilities of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separated and code provision A.5.1 that the composition of
the nomination committee should be comprised a majority of
independent non-executive directors. Details of such deviations
are set out in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
and the sub-section “Composition” under the section of “Board of

Directors” in this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently
comprises two executive directors. Mr. Wu Ming Gai acts as
Chairman of the Board and Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan. The
Company has three non-executive directors, Mr. Chen Albert,
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen and Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy.
The Company has three independent non-executive directors,
Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Jiang Qian,
representing more than one-third of the Board. Ms. Leung Yin
Ting has appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise.

All directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The biographical details of each
director are disclosed on pages 32 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Each independent non-executive director has pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he/she is
independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent.

Following the retirement of Mr. Law Siu Hung Paul (“Mr.
Law”) and Mr. Wong Ching Wan (“Mr. Wong”) as directors of the
Company at the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on
28 June 2018, Mr. Law also retired as member of audit committee
(“Audit Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) of the Company and Mr. Wong also retired as the
chairman and a member of Audit Committee and remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company and a
member of Nomination Committee.

Accordingly, the number of the INED fell short of the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules and no INED had appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The required composition
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company did not meet the requirements under
Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision
A.5.1 of the Code respectively.
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On 21 August 2018, the Company has appointed Ms. Chan
Man Yi, a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, as an INED, a member of Remuneration Committee
and the chairman and a member of each of Nomination Committee
and Audit Committee, and Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy was
appointed as the chairman and a member of Remuneration
Committee and a member of Nomination Committee. Accordingly,
the Company has already complied with the Listing Rules and
code provision as mentioned in the above paragraph since 21
August 2018, upon the aforesaid appointments of Ms. Chan Man
Yi and Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the
directors shall hold office subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years and eligible for re-election.

The term of office of each of non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) is for a period of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation.

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the
management of the Company, formulation and approval of the
Group’s development and business strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets, financial results and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Company’s articles
of association.

As the position of chief executive officer being vacant,
currently the executive directors are responsible for day-to-
day management of the Company’s operations. They conduct
regular meetings with the management of the subsidiaries of the
Company, at which operational issues and financial performance
are evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting
systems and internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a
key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management.
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The Board has established procedure to enable directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Matters specifically decided by the Board and those reserved
for the management, such as daily management, administration
and operation of the Company, etc. with respective level of
authorities with regard to key corporate strategy, policy and
contractual commitments, are reviewed by the Board. The
management shall report back to the Board.

The articles of association of the Company contain description
of responsibilities and operation procedures of the Board. The
Board holds regular meeting and listens to the operating reports
of the Company and makes policies. Significant operating policies
of the Company have to be discussed and passed by the Board.
Board meetings include regular meetings as defined in the Code
and other meetings when necessary. The Board of Directors
meets formally at least four times a year.

Besides regular and other meetings, the Board obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies
of the management, financial conditions and operating results of
the Company and provisions of significant agreements.

During 2018, the Board held four regular Board meetings at
approximately quarterly interval and other Board meetings which
were convened when deemed necessary. Due notice and Board
papers of regular Board meetings were given to all directors
prior to the meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association and the Code. Details of individual attendance of
directors at regular Board meetings in 2018 are set out below:
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The change of Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report and their attendance of the Board
meetings in 2018:

Executive Directors

HiTE=S

Mr. Wu Ming Gai (appointed as the Chairman on 18 February 2019)

HEEEE(RZE—NWF-_A+N\BEZEARERE)

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan (appointed on 25 February 2019)

BRikMzt+t(R=ZFTE-—NF_AZTHBEZE)

Mr. Chau Wai Hing (resigned as executive Director and Chairman on
18 February 2019)

AEEEE(RZE-—NF_ATN\BBHERTEERER)

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas (resigned on 26 November 2018)
BEHFEE(RZZE-—NF+—-—AZ+AET)

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen

ERAELE

Mr. Hui Man Ho Ivan (retired on 28 June 2018)
MXEEERZZE-—NFAZTNBER)
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No. of regular Board Meeting attended/
No. of regular Board Meeting held
HEEHESEEERE
ETEHESSEERE

4/4

N/A
5@ A

4/4

3/3
3/4

1/2

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (appointed on 23 March 2018 and re-designated

from independent non-executive Director on 14 December 2018)
ERCAEERZT—NF=ZA-F+=BRZERBIUINTESE "
YR —ZE—N\F+_H+MHBEERFE)
Mr. Chen Albert (appointed on 1 August 2018)
REEEE(RZZE-—NFENR-—BEZEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (retired on 28 June 2018)
FEEEER=ZZE-—NFAAZTNBRE)

Mr. Law Siu Hung Paul (retired on 28 June 2018)
mOBEEE(RZZE-NFEAZT/N\BRE)

Mr. Sio Chan In Devin (resigned on 14 December 2018)
BRARERZE-—NFE+ZA THEEE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi (appointed on 21 August 2018)
REELET(R_ZE-—NFNA -+ —BEZE)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting (appointed on 14 December 2018)
2EEZET(R_BE-NF+T-_ATHOAEEE)

Mr. Jiang Qian (appointed on 14 December 2018)
BaRAEERZZE-—NF+T_ATHBEEZE)

3/3

1/2

2/2
2/2
3/3
11
N/A
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The role of the Chairman (assumed by an executive director,
Mr. Wu Ming Gai, appointed as the Chairman on 18 February
2019 and Mr. Chau Wai Hing resigned on 18 February 2019) is
separated from that of the chief executive officer. Such division of
responsibilities allows a balance of power between the Board and
the management of the Group, and ensures their independence
and accountability.

The office of the chief executive officer of the Company
was vacant since 26 May 2015. The executive directors of the
Company will continue to oversee the day-to-day management of
the business and operations of the Group until the appointment of
a new chief executive officer.

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees
the Board so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by other directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has
overall responsibility for providing leadership, vision and direction
in the development of the business of the Company. During the
year, the Chairman had met the independent non-executive
directors of the Company without the presence of the other
executive directors and non-executive directors of the Company.

Currently, the executive directors are responsible for the
day-to-day management of the business of the Group, attends
to formulation and successful implementation of policies, and
assumes full accountability to the Board for all operations of the
Group. Working with the management team of subsidiaries of the
Company, they ensure smooth operations and development of
the Group. They maintain continuing dialogue with the Chairman
and all directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
developments and issues. They are also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective management team to support them.

The Board considers that there are adequate balance of
power and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this
situation periodically and will ensure that present structure would
not impair the balance of power of the Company.
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Responsibilities of Directors

In the course of discharging their duties, the directors act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

— Attending regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance.

— Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries of the
Company.

— Approval of annual budgets for each operating company
covering strategy, financial and business performance,
key risks and opportunities.

— Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability
of internal and external reporting.

— Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest
of management, Board members and shareholders,
including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related
party transaction.

— Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall
integrity of the Company, including financial statements,
relationships with other stakeholders, and compliance
with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company’s directors to meet their obligations,
an appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly
defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

Board Committees

A number of Board Committees, including Audit Committee,
Investment Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, have been established by the Board of Directors
to strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise. These
committees have been formed with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with the committees’ authority and
duties.
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Investment Committee

The Board has established an Investment Committee, as
at the date of this report, the Investment Committee comprising
one executive director, namely Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
(Chairman) and one non-executive director, namely Mr. William
Keith Jacobsen.

The terms of reference of the Investment Committee have
been approved and adopted by the Board.

The Investment Committee considers, evaluates, reviews
and recommends to the Board the proposed major investments,
acquisitions and disposals, conducts post-investment evaluation
with investment manager of the investment projects, reviews
and considers the overall strategic direction and business
developments of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, as at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprising,
one non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Jiang
Qian (Chairman), Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider Company’s policy for remuneration of directors and
employees, to determine remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and employees including benefits in kind,
pension rights (under code provision B.1.2(c)(i) was adopted)
and compensation payments, and to recommend to the Board of
Directors on remuneration of independent non-executive directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done in 2018:

— reviewed the remuneration policy for 2018/2019;

— determined the remuneration of executive directors and
employees; and

— reviewed and made recommendation of the fee of the

non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors).
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management
(including all executive directors of the Company) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FHERCGER)

0 to 1,000,000
0%1,000,000

Further particulars regarding all Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 133 to 136.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during
2018. Details of individual attendance of its members are set out
in the table below:

The change of members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year and up to the date of this
report and their attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings in 2018:

Names

e

Mr. Jiang Qian (Chairman) (appointed on 14 December 2018)
BREE(ERE)(RZE-NF+-AT+THEEZE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (appointed on 21 August 2018)
BEHCAEE(RZZE—\FNA-+—BEZE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi (appointed on 21 August 2018)
RHEELET(RZZ2-—NFEFNAZ+—BEZE)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting (appointed on 14 December 2018)
2EELET (N -_FT-NF+_ATHOREZE)

Mr. Sio Chan In Devin (resigned on 14 December 2018)
BEREEMR_Z-—NAF+-ATHAEE)

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (retired on 28 June 2018)
TEEEERZZE-NFEXRAZTNBEE)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas (resigned on 26 November 2018)
BEEREE(RZZE—NF+—-—AZ T/ EHEE)
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit Committee
is composed of one non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.
It reports directly to the Board of Directors and reviews matters
within the scope of audit, such as financial statements and internal
controls, to protect the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor, at least twice a year, to discuss audit process
and accounting issues, and reviews effectiveness of internal
controls and risk evaluation. Written terms of reference, which
describes the authority and duties of the Audit Committee are
regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. The terms of
reference is available on the Company’s website.

Details of non-compliance with rule 3.21 are set out in the
sub-section of "Composition" under the section of "Board of
Directors" in this report.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2018:

— review of the consolidated and condensed financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and for
the six months ended 30 June 2018 respectively;

— review of effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

— review of internal audit function;

— review of continuing connected transactions and annual
caps;

— review of implementation of policy for employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

— review of independent auditor’s report and management
letter (if any); and

— consideration and approval of 2018 audit fees and
audit work, review of engagement letter and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and resignation of auditor.
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As at 31 December 2018, the arrangement for employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters was in place.
No reporting has been received by Audit Committee during the
year.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year.
Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in the
table below:

The change of members of the Audit Committee during
the year and up to the date of this report and their
attendance of Audit Committee meetings in 2018:

Names

e

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) (appointed on 21 August 2018)

ReEat(FE)(RZE-N\ENA+—-—BEZE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (appointed on 26 November 2018)

BRCEERZZE-—NF+-—HAZ+BEZEE)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting (appointed on 14 December 2018)

2EEZET(RZBE-NFE+-_ATHOABEEE)

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (retired on 28 June 2018)

FEERAE(RZFE-—NFARAZTN\BRE)

Mr. Law Siu Hung Paul (retired on 28 June 2018)

BLOEEE(RZZE-—NFRAZTN\BEME)

Mr. Sio Chan In Devin (resigned on 14 December 2018)
BRAEERZZBE-NF+_ATHBEEE)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas (resigned on 26 November 2018)

B EE(R-_T—NFt+—A-+RNBBEE)
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee on 1
April 2012 which currently comprises one non-executive director,
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy, two independent non-executive
directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) and Mr. Jiang Qian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider the structure, size and composition of the Board
regularly and make recommendation on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Its duties include making recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re- appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination
Committee done in 2018:

— made recommendation to the Board on matters relating
to, inter alia, nomination of candidates to the Board and
re-election of retiring Directors;

— reviewed the board diversity policy;

— reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

— conducted an annual review of the independence of the
independent non-executive directors; and

— reviewed the Board composition and structure.
According to the articles of association of the Company, the
Board has the power from time to time and at any time to appoint

any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Mr. Wu Ming Gai, Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy
and Mr. William Keith Jacobsen to retire by rotation and, being
eligible, to offer themselves for re-election by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming 2019 annual general meeting. Mr.
Chen Albert, Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting, Mr. Jiang
Qian and Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan, the newly appointed
directors, will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming 2019 annual general meeting.

In considering the appointment of Mr. Chen Albert, Ms.
Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting, Mr. Jiang Qian and Ms. Chan
Carman Wing Yan as new directors during the year of 2018 and
first quarter of 2019, the Nomination Committee assessed the
relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity, independent
mindedness, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities effectively etc.,
and made recommendation to the Board for approval. The Board
would consider the Nomination Committee's recommendations
and approved the appointments.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from the Director(s) for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by the Director(s). The
factors which would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate
for director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate strategy, willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as the Director,
diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate to
the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year. Details of individual attendance of its members are set out in
the table below:
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The change of members of the Nomination Committee
during the year and up to the date of this report and
their attendance of Nomination Committee meetings in
2018:

Names

i

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman) (appointed on 21 August 2018)

Rzt (FE)(RZE-N\ENAZ+—BEZE)

Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (appointed on 21 August 2018)

BERCEER_BE-NFENA-T+-—HEZE)

Mr. Jiang Qian (appointed on 14 December 2018)

BEREEMNR-_Z-NF+-_ATEOBREZE)

Mr. Chau Wai Hing (resigned on 14 December 2018)
AREEE (R -_Z-—NF+-_ATOBEFE)

Mr. Law Siu Hung Paul (retired on 28 June 2018)

BLOBEEE(RZZE-—NFRAZTN\BEME)

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (retired on 28 June 2018)
BEAERZ=ZZE—NESAZFTN\BEME)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in
August 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the
Board of the Company.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors
and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender
or religious belief. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

industry knowledge and experience,

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in part,
dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and
other qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review the board diversity policy and
setting of any measurable objectives from time to time.

Directors’ Induction and Training

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the year,
directors received from the Company updates on changes and
development to the legislative and regulatory environments in
which the Company operates. Directors participated in continuous
professional development such as attending seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company had received record of the trainings from each director
relating to development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills.
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Directors Reading regulatory updates
BEx MEREEEHRER

Executive Directors

BiTES

Mr. Chau Wai Hing (resigned on 18 February 2019) v
FAREEE(R_FT-NF_ATN\BEE)

Mr. Wu Ming Gai v
HAsREL A

Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan (appointed on 25 February 2019) N/A
RAMZ L (RZBE-NFE-_A-THAEBEE) 8 R

Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy (appointed on 23 March 2018
and re-designed from independent non-executive director
on 14 December 2018) v
BERCEERZZE—N\FZAZT+=BEZERBLIERT
BEVRN _ZT-N\F+-ATHBERFE)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas (resigned on 26 November 2018) v
EHEREE (R ZZE-NF+—-—HZTXEEE)

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen 4
BERAELE

Mr. Hui Man Ho Ivan (retired on 28 June 2018) 4
FXERERZZE-—NFARNAZTNBEME)

Mr. Chen Albert (appointed on 1 August 2018) v

REBEE(R-_Z-NFNH-BEZE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Law Siu Hung Paul (retired on 28 June 2018) v

BOBEERZZE-—NFESAZTNBRE)

Mr. Wong Ching Wan (retired on 28 June 2018) v

FEEEE(RZZE-—NFXAZTNBEME)

Mr. Sio Chan In Devin (resigned on 14 December 2018) 4
BAXRE(R T A\F+-A+HEHEEE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi (appointed on 21 August 2018) v

REELXE(RZE-—NFNA-+—BEZET)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting (appointed on 14 December 2018) 4

2EEZET(R_E-NFE+-_ATOHEEEE)

Mr. Jiang Qian (appointed on 14 December 2018) v

BEREER-_ZE-NF+-_ATEOBREZE)
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the Code. The major roles
and functions of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
are:

— to develop and review the Company’s policy and practices
on corporate governance; and

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and the Company’s compliance with the Code.

The Board had considered the following corporate governance
matters for 2018:

— review of the policy and practices adopted by the
Company and training for Directors, etc.

— review of usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group

— review of compliance with the Code and disclosure of
Corporate Governance Report

— review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is appointed a representative from an
external secretarial services provider as the company secretary
of the Company. The primary contact person of the Company
with the company secretary is Mr. Wu Ming Gai, the executive
Director. The role of the company secretary is to ensure effective
information flows and communication among Directors, as well
as between shareholders and management of the Company. The
company secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary. During the Year, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, the Company confirmed that in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018, all directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also established written guidelines
regarding securities transactions on no less exacting terms of the
Model Code for specific individual who may have access to inside
information in relation to the securities of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

On 19 May 2015, BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company and Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”)
was appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so
arising. On 6 January 2017, Elite Partners resigned as auditor
of the Company and World Link CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants (“World Link”) was appointed by the Directors to fill
the casual vacancy so arising.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The Audit Committee reviews engagement letter and report
from the external auditor of the Company, World Link, confirms
their independence, approves their appointment, discusses the
scope of their audit, approves their fees, and the scope and
appropriate fees for any non-audit services requested to be
provided by them.

World Link provided annual audit services in respect of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended
31 December 2018. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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During the year, remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditors, World Link and other World Link network firms, is as

follows:
Services rendered: HK$
Audit services 295,000
Non-audit services
— Review of interim financial information 60,000
— Risk assessment and internal control
review 100,000
— Services in relation to the environmental,
social and governance reporting 50,000
— Taxation services 5,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets at all times. The Company has
adopted a series of risk management and internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

Details of the Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems” of the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 12 to 13 of this annual report.

The Group has not established an internal audit, but has
engaged an external professional consultant to perform the
work of internal audit function and during the year, the external
professional consultant had reviewed and assessed the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and reported to
the Audit Committee. The review covered several parts of the
systems including risk management, and operational, financial
and compliance controls.

The Board, and through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2018 covering all material financial, operational and compliance
functions, is of the view that the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are
considered as effective and adequate. Such review also included
consideration of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit (if any) and financial
reporting functions.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of
timely, accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With these guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide
our shareholders with detailed information about the Company
so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual report,
interim report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

At the annual general meeting held on 28 June 2018 (“2018
AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen and
members of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and
Remuneration Committee and representatives of World Link
attended the 2018 AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Procedure for conducting a poll were explained by the Chairman
at the 2018 AGM.

At an extraordinary general meeting held on 28 June 2018
(the “2018 EGM”), a resolution was proposed by the chairman in
respect of the change of the English name of the Company from
“Huge China Holdings Limited” to “Cocoon Holdings Limited” and
the change of the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company
from “EFZF BZERAER AR to “FEKXSIERFR A A" and to
authorise the Board or a committee thereof to do all such acts as
they consider necessary to give effect to the change of Company
names and to attend to necessary registration and/or filing.
Certain directors attended the meeting and answered the question
of the Shareholders.
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Attendance of individual Directors at general BRAEER_—ZF-N\NFREXEVEHERBR :
meeting(s) in 2018:

2018 EGM 2018 AGM
—E-N\F —E2-N\F
BRERSE RS BRRBFAE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Chau Wai Hing (Chairman) v v
B2 S A (F )
Mr. Wu Ming Gai 4 4
HH 88 1 % A&
Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan N/A N/A
BR &k IR 2 i@ A i A
Non-Executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Wong Chung Yan Sammy 4 4
mACALE
Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas v v
25 B 0 o A
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen v 4
EREELE
Mr. Hui Man Ho Ivan v v
BF X
Mr. Chen Albert N/A N/A
R M 18 5 A4 5@ A iE A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. Wong Ching Wan v v
FEEEE
Mr. Sio Chan In Devin v v
BEARLE
Mr. Law Siu Hung Paul 4 4
R A
Ms. Chan Man Yi N/A N/A
PR Bz &+ i@ A i A
Ms. Leung Yin Ting N/A N/A
R e+ 3 B i A
Mr. Jian Qian N/A N/A
it S & A 38 A
The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will AARWRERRBERGEHRR_ZE—NF~HA
be held on 28 June 2019 which will be conducted by way of poll. “HNAHET UEBUARERRFAEST -

Annual Report 20185

61



62

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ e
ERER|E

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”). Set out below are procedures by
which shareholders may (a) convene an EGM; (b) put forward
enquires to the Board; and (c) put forward proposals at general
meetings. The procedures are subject to the Company’s articles of
association and applicable legislation and regulation.

(a) Procedures for shareholders to convene EGM

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must state the business to be
transacted at the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s)
and deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or
the company secretary of the Company, and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionist(s). The requisition will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company
will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements
under the articles of association of the Company and the
Listing Rules to all the registered shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as invalid,
the requisitionist(s) will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene a meeting in the same
manner, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months after the expiration of
this said twenty-one days.
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(c)
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The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised
by the requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal as set out in the
Company’s articles of association and the Code.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the attention
of the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written request,
duly signed by the shareholder concerned, setting out the
proposals at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board and the
company secretary of the Company. The request will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrars in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the company secretary of the
Company will pass the request to the Board. Whether a
proposal will be put to a general meeting will be decided
by the Board in its discretion, unless the proposal put
forward by a shareholder is (i) pursuant to a requisition
by a shareholder to convene an EGM referred to above or
(ii) forms part of ordinary business to be considered at an
annual general meeting as described in article 44 of the
articles of association of the Company.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to
propose a person for election as director is available on
the Company’s website.
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Constitutional documents

There was no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year.

The updated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company is available on the Company’s website.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statement of
the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 65 to 72.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Wernld Link CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS HUGE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cocoon Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 166, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of unlisted financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and unlisted financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”)

2. Impairment and recoverability of the Group’s loan notes

Key Audit Matter
BREETEHE

Valuation of unlisted financial assets at FVTPL and unlisted
financial assets at FVTOCI

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgement and estimates in note 5, relevant disclosures in notes
7, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had unlisted financial assets at FVTPL and unlisted
financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately HK$53,257,000
and HK$35,176,000 respectively were measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2018. The fair values were assessed by the
management based on valuations performed by two independent
companies of professional valuers (“Valuers”) engaged by the
Group.
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The valuations of the unlisted financial assets at FVTPL
and unlisted financial assets at FVTOCI involved significant
judgement and estimates, including the determination of
valuation methodology and the selection of different inputs to the
valuation models.
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Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

BMEREFEENEFEE -

— Evaluating the expertise and independence of the
Valuers;

— FAEEEANEREBIIE

— Checking the accuracy of the historical data used in
the valuation model;

— REGERUPERNE L BIENERE

— Challenging the appropriateness of the key
assumptions applied in the valuation model, with
reference to historical performance of each investee
and our understanding of their respective businesses
and industries;
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

We identified the valuation of unlisted financial assets at FVTPL
and unlisted financial assets at FVTOCI as a key audit matter as
they accounted for approximately 45% of total Group’s assets
(by value) as at 31 December 2018 and were significant to
the Group’s capital and financial performance due to a higher
degree of complexity, and the significance of management’s
judgements and unobservable inputs involves in the valuations.
The valuations of these unlisted financial instruments involve
the application of unobservable inputs such as price to book
ratios, discount rates, credit spread and volatility. With different
valuation techniques, inputs and assumptions applied, the
valuation results can vary significantly.
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EHAMKRIENIIF LT EREENGEEZRNRERESS
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERREENSE

— We engaged a valuation specialist to assist us to
review the appropriateness of the valuation approach
and methodology, the accuracy of the calculations
in the valuation model and the market data used
on a sample basis, and the reasonableness of the
components comprising the discount rate; and

— BMHZETHEZRGHRMABREEERTENG
B EERER G E LTSS (CAHRER S ) B
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— Reviewing the appropriateness of the disclosure in
the consolidated financial statements.
— ERGFAVBREABENSEN -
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

Impairment and recoverability of the Group’s loan notes

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4, critical
Jjudgement and estimates in note 5 and its relevant disclosures in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment and recoverability of loan
notes as a key audit matter due to the significant degree of
management’ s judgement in assessing their expected credit
losses (“ECL").

BN ERZBENRERATKE TR SEEETEE THR
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had subscribed five
trenches of loan notes designated at amortised costs with gross
carrying value of approximately HK$61,019,000 ( “Loan Notes")
and provision for impairment of HK$4,992,000. Provision is made
for lifetime ECL on Loan Notes.
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In assessing the ECL as well as recoverability of the Loan Notes,
management applied judgement in assessing the ECL of each
issuer of Loan Notes individually based on respective credit risk
characteristics and the likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of these issuers, their geographical locations and
industries, and applying ECL rates to respective gross carrying
amounts of Loan Notes. The ECL rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced and were adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of Loan Notes' issuers to redeem
their Loan Notes upon maturity.
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We have identified impairment and recoverability of the Loan
Notes as a key audit matter due to considerable amount
of judgment and estimation being required in conducting
recoverability and ECL assessment as mentioned in the
foregoing paragraph.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

HMERLEERNEFERE

— evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

— FHHEEEES  WREBRGFGEBREEEENE
AR I R AT B KB E A UL

— assessing the reasonableness of the Group's ECL
models by examining the model inputs used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions used in
each of the economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowances; and
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— inspected settlements after the financial year end
relating to the Loan Notes as at 31 December 2018.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all the information included in the
Company’s annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

R Y R

s HEFRARKERKESHERMBEMLIFL
i o IRIBPIERMNETGBE BREZERF
HFEERIBEABEHENEATHEEN - KW
RENY EEENKELERNELE
REEHE - MRBEMBREEERTEE N
BV EERBMBRETRFEAEIZRS
EHMBRTNEBENEE -BEABOEK
BETE ABRTHEMANER - RANEHZ
ERNZHBENRE B EAMRENETRE - R
- REKERERIBEAATEESR EEETA

& g2 g A b AL
FECEMBE S ©

s HEFAVMBHRRNERIHZOA  REM
NE BREREE URGAVBHRERESR
TP mABBEZ B MEE o

e B BEEERNERAXBEINMBESRE
MAR RENBABRE UBHEGESUHK
BREXRER -HMAE EEETEANS
M- EEMRT RMAASFSAEAEARER
BB AME o

BREMERSN  BRMRBRTENGEEE K
MZHEREAEABRRSE  SERMES DI
NEMEZENTAEARRE  HBXZZBQETESE -

BMEMNEZZESRXEHR  HARMDET
FRBYEMNERERERER Y EHGBMERE
MREAEMRAREFERFIB LI A BEN
HFEE  AREEANBRT - HENHHBEE

Annual Report 20185

71



72

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

World Link CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06633

5/F, Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEsREMZEERER

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+-—A=+—HILHFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M &t TER FET
Gross proceeds from disposals of HERSGBEHFRFTERIBETE
trading securities 123,228 66,938
Revenue A 9 10,812 10,570
Other revenue H b e A 10 410 5,109
Other gains and losses H it Wz & B 18 11 (75,961) (207,264)
(64,739) (191,585)
Other operating expenses H A& &5 X (9,552) (10,627)
Finance costs M%E A 12 (4,167) (3,296)
Loss before tax R Bt A E5 18 13 (78,458) (205,508)
Income tax FFr 15 5% 14 - =
Loss for the year FEEE (78,458) (205,508)
Other comprehensive income, Htt 2 HE W= (NBRHRK) ¢
net of tax:
Item that will not be reclassified BT EET D HE R mAEA
to profit or loss:
— Fair value gain of financial —RAAEREMEE KR
assets at fair value through B ([ A ARERE AL
other comprehensive income 2HEHKEINER]) 2 &5
(“FVTOCI”) BEMNRALERS 8,676 —
Loss and total comprehensive KXABEEAELEEREBEAR
income for the year attributable to ZHERZHEE
owners of the Company (69,782) (205,508)
Loss per share BREE
Basic H K 16 (HK$0.807& t) (HK$2.397% 7t)
Diluted g (HK$0.803% 7T) (HK$2.397% 1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BT RS AR  &

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ii¥za FHE T FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE R 18 19 29
Goodwill 5k 19 — —
Loan notes BERER 21 45,610 =
45,629 29
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and H A R - 12 KRB KB
prepayments 20 15,764 7,945
Loan notes ERER 21 10,417 6,546
Financial assets at fair value through ERARBEREZRS R
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (MRARERB=EERYIER])
ZEMEE 22 85,069 201,399
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAAREREME® KSR
ZEREE 23 35,176 —
Due from securities brokers JE UL 3B 5 AR 40 TR IR 24 12 461
Bank balances R1T 4 54 4,779 3,888
151,217 220,239
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to securities brokers JE S 38 5 18 40 FRE 25 5,190 1,814
Other payables and accruals HihEA R R EETE R 26 3,801 1,310
Shareholder's loan IR R E R 27 31,710 —
Convertible bonds ] G 5 28 — 12,564
Promissory notes ANE 29 834 9,626
41,535 25,314
Net current assets REBEEFE 109,682 194,925
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBERS 155,311 194,954
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Promissory notes ANE 29 19,920 20,220
Net assets EESFE 135,391 174,734
Capital and reserves EREK #E
Share capital % A5 31 119,909 85,929
Reserves ER 33 15,482 88,805
Total equity R 135,391 174,734
Net asset value per share BREEFE 34 HK$1.13% 7T HK$2.037 7T

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

March 2019.

Wu Ming Gai

iR ES
Director

EF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

HEZEER - Z-—NF=ZA=-T/\BHERKET

i

Chan Carman Wing Yan

BR 7Kk fiX
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

Financial Retained
Convertible assets at profits/
Share bonds equity FVTOCI  (accumulated Total
capital Share premium reserve reserve losses) reserve Total
(Note 33(b)(i) ~ (Note 33(b)(ii)) ~ (Note 33(b)(ii)
BARE
REBZE
W& 5% 2
TEARS SRHEE  REREN/
Rx kB EE BEREE WeEE  (RFER) BEE BE

(BaEas)i) — (H33m))  (FE330)i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx Thx Thn T T T T

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-F-8 85,929 203,918 171 — (115,284) 88,805 174,734
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ AFEBERZANGHE
forthe year - - - 8676 (78.458) (69,782) (69,782)

Issue of shares on placement

EERRTRBWE)

(note 31) 33,980 (3,541) - - . (3541) 30439
Redemption of convertible bonds REAERESH728)

(note 28 . - (171 - 7 - -
Changes in equity for the year TEERERY 33,980 (3,541) (1m) 8,676 (78,287) (73,323) (39,343)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1-A 119,909 200,377 - 8,676 (193,571) 15,482 135,391
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z-—N\GF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Retained
Convertible profits/
Share Share bonds equity (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses) reserve Total
(Note 33(b)(i) (Note 33(b)(ii)
ERES REEN/
B R4 % E EnfAE (RIGER) ARE ag
(HZE33(b)(i))  (Hi£33(b)(ii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TER TER
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—tF—-A—-AR 85,929 203,918 240 90,155 294,313 380,242
Loss and total comprehensive TEEREREANGZAE
income for the year — — — (205,508) (205,508) (205,508)
Redemption of convertible bonds 5 [B1 7] & # & 3 (4 :2.28)
(note 28) — — (69) 69 — —
Changes in equity for the year AEEERE — - (69) (205,439) (205,508) (205,508)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H 85,929 203,918 171 (115,284) 88,805 174,734

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A A —X
mEBEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Mt &t FTHER FHE T

Cash flows from operating activities RETH2HERE
Loss before tax B iRl E 18 (78,458) (205,508)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income A B U A (10,812) (10,570)
Finance costs B 75 B 7R 4,167 3,296
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREBTE

equipment 14 18
Fair value losses on trading securites X 5% %5 2 A {EEE 10,817 108,461
Fair value losses on convertible bonds #5§& A A A ERIBRE

designated at financial assets at PR SR EEM AT EBRES

FVTPL BWARERBE 14,073 14,328
Fair value losses on private equity fund #5F A A v B R BRI

designated at financial assets at ZERMEENMEEEAAE

FVTPL &5 18 5,459 —
Gain on disposals of convertible bonds &1 EAZALBEREZEE

designated at financial assets at PRz R EEM I ERES

FVTPL 0 g 26 (5,081) —
Impairment losses on goodwill AmEREEE — 38
Impairment losses on loan notes ERZEBREESE 4,992 =
Impairment losses on deposits &R EEBE 351 —
Other payables written back it S5 EC th FE 1< 3R (120) (5,108)
Operating loss before working capital RtEBEEREHA 2

changes KB R (54,598) (95,045)
Decrease in trading securities R 5 BH D 35(a)(ii) 28,696 84,109
Decrease in other receivables, deposits E fth B - B & &

and prepayments SEERE O 1,830 436
Decreasel/(increase) in amounts due JE U 38 75 48 40 5k 18

from securities brokers (35 n) 449 (204)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to &5 B %5 4% 40 7k 1

securities brokers =0 O ) 3,376 (10,009)
Increase in other payables and accruals £ ftb & 5 % & & 5T & F3 £ 0 2,423 962
Cash used in operations KEMAZRE (17,824) (19,751)
Interest received/(paid) B, (3 A+H) 7 B 2,808 (1,242)
Net cash used in operating activities K& FZEFAZREFH (15,016) (20,993)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN A~ —1
mEBEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M &t FTAER FA T

Cash flows from investing activities REZHZRERE
Interest received B F B 2 1
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME WENZE

equipment (4) —
Purchases of unlisted equity BEEREREZEANE

investments designated at financial A EAth & Uz 51 BR 2

assets at FVTOCI TREEMIE LMRERE  35(a)(iii) (8,000) —
Subscription of loan notes REBEERER 35(a)(i) (5,500) (3,000)
Deposit paid for potential investment SNEEREES (10,000) —
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFAZHREFH (23,502) (2,999)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZHNWRERE
Increase in shareholder's loan % BB FRE 0 27 30,000 —
Proceeds from issue of promissory BITEANER TS HIE

notes — 27,220
Redemption of promissory notes FEgEIpEE S (8,530) —
Proceeds from issue of shares on Bic & 5 2 1T AR D O PR 1S 3018 -

placement, net of expenses HBREBEEAR 31 30,439 —
Redemption of convertible bonds fE 8] AT B (E 5 (12,500) (5,000)
Net cash from financing activities MEESH 2BEESFE 39,409 22,220
Net increase/(decrease) incashand BRERBEEHE 2 #E M~

cash equivalents (R 2) 38 891 (1,772)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R — A —H B4 MR L 55 3,888 5,660
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Rt+t=-—B=+—H=ZzEHEEK

December BE&ZEHE 4,779 3,888
Analysis of the balances of cashand BHE&RBHEZHELH DM

cash equivalents
Bank balances R 17 &5 8k 4,779 3,888

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
its registered office is Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital
Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is Unit 1601, 16th Floor, South Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1
Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The principal activities of the Company are investments in
securities listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted
investments with a potential for earnings growth and capital
appreciation.

The investment objective of the Company is to achieve an
enhanced earnings stream and capital appreciation from its
investments.

The Company has adopted the following investment policies:

(i) the Company may, at its sole discretion, invest in any
securities, listed or unlisted, including warrants, money
market instruments, bank deposits, currency investments,
commodities, options, convertible securities, futures
contracts and precious metals or any other forms
of investments in securities which would enable the
Company to achieve good income or capital appreciation.

(ii) the Company may, for hedging purposes only, buy, write
or sell warrants, covered warrants, options or traded
options on its underlying investments. The Company
may also buy or sell futures contracts on stock indices or
shares (if any) as a means to hedge against adverse price
movements of its investments.

(iii

=

in order to hedge against interest rate risks, the Company
may enter into forward interest rate agreements, interest
rates and US treasury bond futures contracts and
interest rate swaps. The Company may also, for hedging
purpose only, purchase and write (sell) put or call options
or options on futures on interest rates. The Company
will only engage in transactions in options and futures
which are traded on a recognized securities or futures
exchange.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

—maEH
FREXSERBRAGB(ARADRASHS
MK RERRERAT  ERNHEFSHS
RZMBRAB([HRAT]) £ - Rl ER
Z ik ZCayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital
Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands ° KRR A2 F ELEME BT D
n%%;ie//ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁa;@sﬁif%zfi*tﬁﬁiﬂei%wm
EoARARAMNEEER T ARENERA

R LT & %&ﬂﬁ”ﬂ?§&§$?@
NHIFEETRE o

RAFIREBREREMBTN R R ERENERIE
& -

RRARERBATREBEK

(i) "ARAIZEMBERENEM EmkE L
MEFHF  BRERARESE EEMBIE  §
TER EBEE BH - B AERE
5 HEAHRELEIEMNEMERZE
HIE  FEADFREREIZ BN AKEIRE
RIEE

(i) ERHHENME - ARAIABE  HEX
MERBERE  BRLRREE  HExEA
MIREZXZHE - ARBATAEERTEE
BzHEANIBO (MEA)  FREKRERE
RANEE 2R TH

(iii) ﬁ%iiliﬂ?‘iﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ © XX A) A AT AL AR B A K 5
CMEREBEEEEFMEAH RN EE
,Hﬁ/a\,%’wi SEHENME ARATAR
E&Hﬂ%(iﬁﬁ)%ﬁﬁ%%H%HH%&%‘JTH =1
Hifg - ARFESETRRUBSFAHAER
SMEBEZHEIRPERS : &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

GENERAL (Continued)

(iv) cash pending investment, reinvestment or distribution will
be placed in bank deposits in any currency, obligations
of the United States or Hong Kong governments, their
respective agencies or instrumentalities, or securities and
other instruments denominated in any currency issued
by various governments or international development
agencies.

The Company may not:

(i) either on its own or in conjunction with any connected
person, take legal, or effective, management control of
any company or other entity in which it invests or controls
more than 30% (or such other percentage as may from
time to time be specified in the Takeovers Code as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity; and

(ii) invest in any company or other entity if as a result, more
than 20% of the Company’s net asset value as at the date
of such investment would be invested in any one such
company or other entity.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which in collective term
includes all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are discussed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGHITRNLETHNERRM B REE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(a) FE A 7 &I 5T M A48 5T BY B PR B 35 3 o5 %

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

(i) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(i) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018.

The application of IFRS 9 did not affect the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets that
were designated at FVTPL and loans and receivables as
at 1 January 2018 which are continue to be measured at
FVTPL and amortised cost after initial application. As a
result, restatement of the opening retained profits, other
components of equity and comparative information is not
required.

The adoption of IFRS 9 resulted in the following changes
to the Group’s accounting policies.

Al

B EAE =S RMZ AT REE
RIERMERERER B F-N\F—A—
Bz RABNFEREMBERER - EHp -
ATERNBAREE RS I 5 RAER -

(i) BEEMEREENFIRSHBMTAE : &

\:

(i) ERFHEHRELRE1GHEETF S QWK

7N SR B 3 4 B A AR A AN & At AR il R A 2K
BT R] ERIK R -

BRI & BRI E9 2 E T A

B R B 75 i 5 2 Bl 55 9 5% BUAK B R & 5T #E R
FIFAMER - DBERFESREELS
MEE KIERCRTIE SREERE
VA R 1 0 & 5 BR BB 77 A B 16 3T e

AEEDRIEERY I REER LR ATH
3B 15 S e PR B B B 7S R o E BRI SE 95 - )
H_ZE-NF-A-B(EXEABH =
ARIEERNTREPEEAIBERGER
KOEIRH T NF-A-HERILH®
ROTEEABHAEN -

B B BT R R O T
—N\E—A— BAREEEE RS R ERIER
B 511 BR 2 & b4 7 DA T B 3K R M S Y
SRR - A B R Rk A A E R
BESERBBRAHE - Al BEE
FUMR B A - RS E A H D R LB
B o

SR B IR B T 2R 5 R B OB BOA &
HEEAMT RS -

i)
i3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAFFITANKBITNERIBERSEE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 8 (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs (a) EAFGITMEEITNERE T BEREE
(Continued) Al (#&)
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) B iR 2E R E9R A T A (&)
(a) Classification (a) 748
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its BE-Z— N \F—HF— Ak AEEEHE
financial assets in the following measurement ERMEES BT E8ER -
categories:
— those to be measured subsequently at FVTOCI or — HEEBEAAEREMZERZEIIER
FVTPL, and FRAAERBERRIFAENS
— those to be measured at amortised cost. — RESRKAFENERMEE °
The classification depends on the Group’s business DEFARAEEEECREENES
model for managing the financial assets and the BARBEEREG KR -

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and BEARBETENEERE REBEETA
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or B Hte2Ela  WHFEEER
other comprehensive income. For investments in T = TEREBEURR K%@BAW&AE&
equity instruments that are not held for trading, this RERS I HEMEREAABERE
will depend on whether the Group has made an 2 U 5 DI BRI AR IR B ABR ©

irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVTOCI.

The Group reclassifies financial assets when and only AEBEREEEZSEENEBLER
when its business model for managing those assets BEE T @ Hosa i@ﬁﬁé o
changes.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGHITRNLETHNERRM B REE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(a) FE A 7 &I 5T M A48 5T BY B PR B 35 3 o5 %

(Continued) Al (#&)
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) BRI R 2ERIE9R A T A (&)
(b) Measurement (b) it £

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial
assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

RNIGHERE - AREBRAEAREFE
TREE  WAUFRARERERRT
RHEREE  AREAAEMNEES
MEEERERENIZIKAGE - ER
AERBEERIIENEBEER HKA
REBEEXH e

TAERARTETENESREERNERE
HASRETLE/IN AT EF B
EEEZE -

B TANHERFEBRRRASEEIE
BENEBEAREENERESRER
B-AEEREBEREITAD BR=TEFE
Rl

c HEHBRAAN: HEUARAONESRE
BEHEREREEXNASEF S
MEERBHRAAGTE - ZFER
BEMNNSWAERERF RXF
AH MU - EARIEEREED
WaEEREXERBEER &R
EREERBEREMKE (B
BI2% - REBEREERERE
BIEAZ7 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Measurement (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI|. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVTOCI| are measured
at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGHITRNLETHNERRM B REE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING A (#&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs (a) ERAFGIRTMEEITNER T BEREE
(Continued) Al (#&)

BRI & ERFE9 @ T A (&
(b) it E (&)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Measurement (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments are continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in other income or administrative and
other operating expenses in the statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B2 \S+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGEITHLIETHNERRYEREE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING A (#&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(a) FE A 37 &I 5T M A48 5T BY B PR B 35 3 o5 %

(Continued) Al (&
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) B iR 2E R E9R A T A (&)
(c) Impairment (c) 18

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
Group’s receivables. There is no significant change
in accumulated impairment loss at the date of initial
adoption of IFRS 9 as compared with that recognised
under IAS 39.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
of the Group remain the same and the carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities of the Group as at 1
January 2018 have not been significantly impacted by
the initial application of IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

3. RAFHTACHETNEBYERER
8l ()

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs
(Continued)

(a) ERAFHIGTNSBITNERMEREE
A (%)
BB IR BRI EIF ot T A (E)
(c) Jd1E (&)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Impairment (Continued)

The following table and the accompanying notes
below explain the original measurement categories
under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories
under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial

TRETXBEMMEHBEAEEEHE
ER_FT-N\F-—A - HEEERSHE
AISE39MA TR AT ERBI A REE
BRE R ELEREIRETH T2

assets as at 1 January 2018. Bl e
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
Classification Classification under under
Financial assets Note under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 IAS 39 IFRS 9
Bl B & 5t Bl PR B 7S 3R B B & 5t & 2E A
Z# B %3957 Z R ZRIZE395% FIRE LK
SREE Mzt BETWSE BT E HTHREE SR E
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Other receivables, deposits (a) Loans and Amortised cost 7,945 7,945
and prepayments receivables
Hih gk -~ e KRN RIE EREEWRIE  EERKA
Loans and receivables (a) Loans and Amortised cost 6,546 6,546
receivables
B3R e W IE B3R e W R IE B R K AR
Financial assets at fair value (b) FVTPL FVTPL 201,399 201,399
through profit or loss
BRARERER RIS (b) HAREREZR RARERER
TREE AR 51| BR BRI BR
Due from securities brokers (a) Loans and Amortised cost 461 461
receivables
JRE U 7% 75 45 42 IR EREEWRIE  BESRAKA

(a) These balances were classified as loans and (a) ZEHEHRBIRER G5 ERIF395%
receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at DEAERNEKRE BoBEA
amortised cost. BREBHBKAGTE -

(b) Financial assets at FVTPL included equity (b) BAREREZRIENSRMEE

securities held for trading and derivative financial
assets (except for those designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges) are required to
be held as FVTPL as under IFRS 9. There was no
impact on the amounts recognised in relation to
these assets from the adoption of IFRS9.

BRFBEXFINEZESFRITLES
REEEEAENRASRENE M
T ARSI - BRI E RS ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B2 \S+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGEITHLIETHNERRYEREE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(a) FE A 37 &I 5T M A48 5T BY B PR B 35 3 o5 %

(Continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference, if any, at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
(or other components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated. The initial
adoption of IFRS 15 did not have impact on the Group’s
opening retained profits and how the Group recognises its
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2018. These new
and revised IFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

BR P 3 0 5T M A4S BT BY B PR R R R 2
A (%)

(b) B MM {E 1 R 4 3 A9 3 B 5T MRS FT 1Y
B R Bt 75 3R 5 2 A
AEEYERFRACEBER T —N\F
— R — B R 6 6 B B R A RO 3 AT
MEERT BRI |E ER - ZFHHIE]
MZEFTHBRM B RERNBEATHER
AREEAKEER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTIBHR RS

WEHEEXR
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
B % B 75 ¥ 5 A BI52 165 [MHE — T AFE—H—H
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
BB BF 75 ¥R 5 2R A E 235k [ P15 B HEE M 80 & 5t e 2 —E-hh&F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
B B & 51 2% Al 55285% (& FT) [REERRIREERENRAES —T-NAE—-H—H

Amendments to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BIFR B 75 & 2 A (B R])
F [ U

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of IFRS 16
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has
been substantially completed for IFRS 16, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report
for the six months ending 30 June 2019. The Group may
also change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially applied
in that interim financial report.

Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards

[BREFESREEN —ZE-—HAFE Tt FEHD

1 January 2019

—E-h&—H—H

AEBEEEMGEZFETRMTENRER
FERBREHELENTE - BAIRLAKE
EERRBEHREVHBRESEIE16RNBEO T E
AREEHEAMBRRENEATE - BY
FENE-THFBERTIXEL - B EHEK
FBREERNF16FNFAEERHTZK B
HEZE B Al 7R RF Al T0 270 A8 & B35 55 7]
SHEREL  BRARMAZFEINEENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B2 \S+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGEITHLIETHNERRYEREE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

(b) B M AR {E 1 R 4 R 89 37 & 5T MRS FT B9

effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets). IFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors
in IAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or financing
leases.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RAHFGHITRNLETHNERRM B REE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (&)
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

(b) & 78 {B 1] K 4 R 49 37 5 5] M SIS T /Y

effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. The Group’s office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and where applicable the
lease payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under IFRS 16 the Group
may need to recognise and measure a liability at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset for these
leases. The interest expense on the lease liability and
depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be recognised
in profit or loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities will
increase and the timing of expense recognition will also
be impacted as a result.

The Group’s future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for its office property
amounted to approximately HK$280,000 as at 31
December 2018. These leases are not expected to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once IFRS 16 is adopted as it would be
regarded as low value assets under optional exemptions
of IFRS 16.

The Group expects that the initial adoption of IFRS 16
will not have material impact to the Group. However, the
expected changes in accounting policies as described
above could have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

B PR Bt 75 3 5 2 B (4])

IR A1 5 8 5 BRI FE 1655 [ HE | (&
REBEDNTFE  ZENBETEFEAREEL
EHENEHKEE AKENRAENEMR
ERRDRAKLLEHE  EEANBRT -
HENKRBHKUEEBAMESHEME
BEHENARREGREIER/HAZ - 1R
BERBERELEAE165E - NREBE AR
RZEFHERARZEAENRBANR B
REGERE UYHERIMENERREE -
HEREMNMERIRERBEENTER
EEREANER AKENEERAGBHKSE
MBI - MERFENE[ITEEX

|| B2 &
B & o

R=F—NF+=-_A=+—8 ~EEHQ
EVMENTARECEHENRARRERE
< 3R EE 49 /5280,0008 7T - TEEI — B AR
BREERELRE16%H  ZEHEBT TR
REAMEEBBUREENFEREEE RE
7% 5 TH E R 1 B BR B 15 ) 5 22 I S5 1655 Al
BRERABREEE °

AEEBERERRBER Y RELEAE16
BRI EHAEEEXNERTE - R - £
MEFRENERAEP I HAEE —F
—NFENGEMBERRENTE -

Annual Report 20185

91



92

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of IAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how
to apply that standard when there is uncertainty about
income tax treatments. Entities are required to determine
whether uncertain tax treatments should be assessed
separately or as a group depending on which approach
will better predict the resolution of the uncertainties.
Entities will have to assess whether it is probable that
a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. If
yes, the accounting treatment will be consistent with the
entity’s income tax filings. If not, however, entities are
required to account for the effects of the uncertainty using
either the most likely outcome or expected value method
depending on which method is expected to better predict
its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements
until a more detailed assessment has been completed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets
at FVTOCI.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the
noncontrolling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of the
net investment in foreign entities are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Over the term of the lease
but not exceeding 5 years

Office equipment 20%

20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss on derecognition of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Where applicable, contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FESHTHE(E)

(Continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of financial (e) BRRA LA SM T A (&)

instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B=
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represents
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

— FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

— FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FESHTHE(E)

(Continued)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)

(f) ERMEE (&)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at

KERE

BREEFREDBEARANERER KT
B BRIFRBRERELFERERER - BN
FTHARERAEERESZRERERR
AREREMEEREINR(RTED)

FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in AARENERZEHNEMEEKREER -
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. EHAEEDIERSEIEREEEL  EREE
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument REBTAHRENEERIEL - WELE
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the FAEE REMZERERTHNEBERER
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where AAERE(TARE)  BEEZRELER

such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified
as financial assets measured at FVTPL. Any attributable
transaction costs were recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the group had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
were stated at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U 75 8 = M aE

e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Financial assets (Continued)
Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(recycling). Dividend income from equity investments and
interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method were recognised in profit or loss
respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from debt securities were also recognised in profit or loss.
When the investments were derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.

Other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Other receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consisting of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert the
loans into equity of the Group, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve. The liability component
is carried as a liability at amortised cost using the
effective interest method until extinguished on conversion
or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion related to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

(i)

1)

(k)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U

(m

(n)

Other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

(q) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Taxation (Continued)

4. TESTEHE(E)

(q) H =" (&)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—ZT—

NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Taxation (Continued)

(r)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets

4. TESTEHE(E)

(s) ERMEEMNRE

Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including other receivables, loans notes, due
from securities brokers and bank balances). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for other
receivables, loans notes and due from securities brokers,
and measures the lifetime ECL for portfolios of other
receivables, loans notes and due from securities brokers
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The
ECL on these assets are estimated using an analysis of
assets by risk level of customers and apply a probability-
weighted estimate of the credit losses within the relevant
risk type. The probability-weighted estimates of the credit
losses is determined based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of
on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at
the reporting date or an actual default occurring since
initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from financial analysts
and governmental bodies, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

4. TESTEHE(E)

(s) =REE YR E (H)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrate otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default
(i.e. no default history), (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a financial instrument to have low credit risk when it has
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FESHHE(E)

(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(s) =REE YR E (H)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group also
considers that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FESHTHE(E)

(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(s) =REE YR E (H)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are past due over one year, whichever is
earlier. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised directly
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
end of each reporting period.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured to cater for cases where
evidence of significant increase in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available. The
financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:
— Nature of financial instruments;

— Past-due status;

— Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

— External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12m ECL at the current
reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
the profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.

(v) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

(a) Equity investment in private entity designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI

As mentioned in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had subscribed 20% equity interest
of an Anguilla incorporated private entity, Perfect Path
Limited (the “Perfect Path”). Despite the Group holds
20% of the voting power in Perfect Path, the unlisted
equity investment is designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI but not an associate under IAS 28 “Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures”. The management is
of the opinion that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path as (i) the Group has no right
to be represented in the board of directors of Perfect
Path; and (ii) the remaining equity interest, being 80%
equity interest of Perfect Path is owned by another single
shareholder other than the Group.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z

“NETZA=t-BLEE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value of unlisted investments

The unlisted investments of the Group designated at
financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets at FVTOCI
have been valued using the market observable data
of comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount or based on the expected future
cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics. These
valuations require the management to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and
discount rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.
The aggregated fair value of the unlisted investments at
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$120,245,000
(2017: HK$111,073,000). Further details are set out in
notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimated impairment of loan notes, deposits
and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of loan notes,
deposits and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward—looking estimates at the end of reporting
period. The amount of the impairment loss based on
ECL model is measured at the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

During the year, impairment losses of approximately
HK$4,992,000 and HK$351,000 had been recognised on
loan notes and deposits respectively (2017: Nil).

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the

Group’s financial performance. The board of directors

review and agree policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as certain of the Group’s bank balances are denominated
in United State dollar (“‘US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited as long as the HK$ remains
pegged to the US$. This analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2017.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Price risk

As set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s listed investments were
designated at financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group’s investments in listed equity securities are
exposed to equity price risk. The management manages
this exposure by monitoring the change of market prices
of the equity from time to time, and by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk. As at 31 December
2018, if the fair value of the Group’s listed investments
designated at financial assets at FVTPL had been 5%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net loss would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,591,000 (2017: HK$4,516,000).

Credit risk

The carrying amount of other receivables, deposits, loan
notes, due from securities brokers and bank balances
included in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has certain exposure to concentrations of
credit risk. As at 31 December 2018, the Group has
significant concentrations of credit risk as the Group’s
80% (2017: 100%) of the carrying amount of loan notes
were subscribed from two issuers (2017: one issuer).

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated
its finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s
credit risk grading to categories exposures according to
their degree of risk of default. The finance team uses
publicly available financial information and the Group’s
own historical repayment records to rate its major
debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit rating of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

6. M mEkREE(HE)
(c) FERE (&)

BEADEERR - AEEEZIKE M5 E K
BREBEZNRREZENELEAEEEERR
ARERFRSRRER - HEEEKMNA AR
ABNERENRARENGBEENRCERY
HEBAETHR -AKENARIERS
HFNERTRZIFEEE PR HHN
RENEREXSHFHOE -

AEERFEERRFEERBEUTHE
oLl

Category Description Basis of recognising ECL
B 5l B RHFEERENERESE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL

have any past-due amounts

R &f RZEFELHRREIE - I 08 H R TEAEHREERRE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

initial recognition

7 &t EE R B 7746 7 58 LA 2K K & 3 hn 2HEBEEEE  BEERE
In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL credit impaired
EA ERBERAEEFERE 2HEHREEER  FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off

35

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

BRRAEFAATBREVERYE  AEERKRER LEZE

3K RIR

Y Bl 5% 18

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessments on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits. The Group has assessed
that the ECL of other receivables and deposits was
approximately HK$351,000 as at 31 December 2018
under 12m ECL model.

The Group measures loss allowances for loan notes
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different debtors,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan notes
and deposits as at 31 December 2018:

Current (not past due) B HA (K 360 H)

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

6. M ERERE(E)
(c) FERE (&)

TERRHABBEAEER_FT-N\F+_A
ST -HZERFRBRGEERARREREES

AR -
Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEHEEE HERTEE EEEE
HK$’'000 HK$°000
% FA& T THT
6.98% 76,519 (5,343)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the loan
notes.

The credit risk on amounts due from securities brokers is
limited because the counterparties are well-established
securities broker firms in Hong Kong which are subject
to compliance requirement under Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s loan notes, amounts due from/to securities
brokers, convertible bonds and promissory notes bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject
to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits. These bank deposits bear interests
at floating rates varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

BHEREEDERNBE=FNEREELR
B - ZF L REHEB AR K E B E IR
Z AR AR« RER A RANE B
EXEBRRAFHARLERARZBEZNT
B

EWEFCLEKENEERREBRD
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h BB 15 PO AT R A 48 T 45 AT AR RO 8B
7 o

(d) FI = = b
AEENERZRE  EBR ENESLELR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—ZT—

NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(e)

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Sensitivity analysis on cash flow interest
rate risk has not been presented as the reasonably
possible changes in market interest rate will not have
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities is as follows:

6. M mEkREE(HE)
(d) FI 2= = B ()

(e)

On demand

BREXFEI  RBEHRR AKELE
EREMEAGFEEERAE  ERak
BHREREAREBIRMSHEES - i
RMGHMENSEAEESE IS HAEE
MPBEBERBREATE At - XER
EREN KRR BEEMEDN

REEEE R
AEENBRRESEHNERNARBRRSDE
EFEFR NEREESEARSFHE AR
REEHMEEHRPESHTE -

AEENFTESRBERBESORTRR
EREMENIFOFMT

and less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years Over5years
RERRK
—FHUR —FEWME MEZERF EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHT FTHT FTHT FHEIT
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZ-N\F
+=A=+-8
Due to securities brokers FE 15} 35 5 4 40 2B 5,190 — — —
Other payables and accruals HMENRREFER 3,801 — — —
Shareholder's loan IR & % 33,600 — — —
Promissory notes AN E 1,124 8,274 18,752 —
43,715 8,274 18,752 —
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=—RA=+-—8
Due to securities brokers JE 1 38 5 & 40 5B 1,814 — — —
Other payables and accruals HMENRREFER 1,310 = = —
Convertible bonds A 5 12,564 — — —
Promissory notes EENES 11,244 1,617 10,614 15,384
26,932 1,617 10,614 15,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREKERE (&)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at f) A+=—A=+—HHE®MIAEEH
31 December
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHEx FHBT
Financial assets: ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBRKNAAARN SR E = 76,133 =
Loans and receivables B3 % ' R
(including cash and cash equivalents) (REHEekBELEH) — 18,561
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEREBZEYERZ
EHMEE 85,069 201,399
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAREREMEEmRKESER
BELEE 35,176 —
Financial liabilities: cREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RERK AR 2 2R A E 61,455 45,534

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

FEUBARNKRAMRRAEESHEE R
%Eﬂﬁtﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ BEROESANARE -

L\)
ﬁﬂ
&F
—L
1]

AVI= ET‘éﬁd‘i%%éﬁi%E?r%E?"EEﬁﬁFﬁ?
SH  HE-—BREEMERIIXESE -HAE
FBEXNER UTAAEAEREERAR
EEX  BRAEFEMERMGERTEAE
FOR=EBRX :

—BREAEEANEEEFEHEHINGEHAE
REENEBBEETRMS EREHABNRE -

F_BRBAERKRE-—BRAEHMENEEE
EXRBEERIFAXRAERNEAE -

F-BROAERHEBEEXRENTAEESR
AfE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREWNFE(E)
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers AEBENBRAESHBRLEE RNEREBNIG
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or MEESCHNBEHRARAEAREL =EABAHH
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. EAfa] — & -
(a) Disclosures of level fair value hierarchy at Q) R+=—A=+—HBHHNAREBREE
31 December
2018
—E-N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—EX EF-EX EF=EX &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT TR T FHERT
Recurring fair value BENAARETE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL RARERERRK
JRzEemMEE
Equity securities held for RXHMEERNER
trading at market value listed &% @ ZMEEE -
in Hong Kong BB EmW 31,812 — — 31,812

Convertible bonds designated  #5F A1Z A /o B
at financial assets at FVTPL REZRYERZ <8
BEM A HIRES — — 39,715 39,715
Private equity fund designated 5 F BE A R ERE
at financial assets at FVTPL =RIEZEMEE
ML EES — — 13,542 13,542
Equity investments designated 15E A AR ERE
at financial assets at FVTOCI b2 EWz5IE 2 &

MEENRERE — — 35,176 35,176
Total recurring fair value FEHRNERFE
measurements S=f 31,812 — 88,433 120,245
2017
= = s
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—[EIX EZ[EIX E=EX A &r
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FH T T FHET FHET
Recurring fair value HENAARETE :
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL BARERERE
JIRzEeMEE
Equity securities held for R 5 MEH N ER
trading at market value listed %% - RIS EE -
in Hong Kong EB L™ 90,326 — — 90,326

Convertible bonds designated 15 F AIZ A &
at financial assets at FVTPL REBERIEREZER

BERAERES — — 111,073 111,073
Total recurring fair value BENALENE
measurements A& 90,326 — 111,073 201,399

124 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXS#ZERERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

7.

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

based on Level 3

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfer of financial assets from Level 3 to

other levels of hierarchy.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

DMRENEE)
(b) RE=ZBRAABEFENEENHIR

RBE_Z-N\FR_ZF—tF+_-A
=t-HLEEE TESF :uﬁ*ﬂiﬂﬂﬁf‘%

i B A B R e

The following table presents the movements in Level 3 TEWNBARNEERN  AEFBE=BKRITAE
instruments of the Group during the year. K H) o
2018
—E-N\F
Convertible Private Equity
bonds equity fund investments
designated designated designated
at financial at financial at financial
assets assets assets
at FVTPL at FVTPL at FVTOCI Total
EER BER BEERIE
RARE RARE ARERHM
REBEZRIE REBEZRIE ZEWHESE
ZERMEE ZEMEE ZEMEE
HY T B R 35 WAEES HWRERE &t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER THER TET THER
At 1 January Kn—A—H 111,073 — — 111,073
Total gains or losses BB Al EE
recognised
— in profit or loss ?Efm( BERBA R
(included in revenue ﬁml& &EHE)
and other gains and
losses) (9,939) (5,459) — (15,398)
— in other comprehensive — 7 H b & M Uk 25
income — — 8,676 8,676
Purchases BE — 19,001 26,500 45,501
Disposals & (61,419) — — (61,419)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 39,715 13,542 35,176 88,433
2017
—E L F
Convertible bonds
designated
at financial
assets
at FVTPL
BERKAR
18 = AR 51 BR
ZeRmEERN
A $ R (E 5
HK$°000
FET
At 1 January n—H—H 115,276
Total losses recognised BHEREEE
— in profit or loss (included in revenue — RiEmE(BERUA R E M= & EE)
and other gains and losses) (4,203)
At 31 December NSF = Sl e B 111,073
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by

the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at
31 December:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the board of directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the board of directors
at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged independent valuation experts with recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to
perform the valuations.

The valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the
Level 3 fair value measurements are set out below:

Description Valuation technique
Convertible bond investments Hull and Partial
designated at financial assets Differential models:

at FVTPL — Discount rate
Private equity fund designated Asset Approach
at financial assets at FVTPL — Net assets value
method
Equity investments designated Income Approach
at financial assets at FVTOCI — Discount cash flow
method

The information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement is set out below.

Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at
FVTPL

The fair value of the convertible bonds designated at
financial assets at FVTPL is estimated using a binomial
option pricing model. The inputs into the valuation model
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were set out in note 22
to the consolidated financial statements.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREWNE(E)
(c) EER+=B=+—8  A&EEMEH

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by

the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at
31 December: (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at
FVTPL (Continued)

The higher of the price per share and expected volatility
would increase the fair value of the convertible bonds
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The
lower of the price per share and expected volatility
would decrease the fair value of the convertible bonds
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Private equity fund designated at financial assets at
FVTPL

The fair value of private equity fund designated at
financial assets at FVTPL is estimated using asset
approach. The inputs into the valuation model as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The higher of the asset per share would increase the fair
value of the private equity fund designated at financial
assets at FVTPL. The lower the asset share would
decrease the fair value of private equity fund designated
at financial asset at FVTPL.

Equity investments designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI

The fair value of the equity investments designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI is estimated using income
approach. The inputs into the valuation model as at
31 December 2018 were set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The higher of the price per share and lower of the
discount rate would increase the fair value of the equity
investments designated at FVTOCI. The lower of the price
per share and higher of the discount rate would decrease
the fair value of the equity investments designated at
FVTOCI.

MEEBRURQIAETEPHRIERAN
HERMEEBAENKRE - (&H)

EEREBEAAMEREBHZRINEKZ 2 HE
Y A BB 1R E 2 ()

BREREEHARDUERES FERRLIR
E%Em%ﬂ%%T%@ﬁ%%@ﬁﬁﬁ@
2o SREREAERRBERE  BER
BARERBRERIIGNITERESOQRN
(=00

HEEREBARERBRLRINKRZ T E
ENREED
EERBARERBRRIKZEREEN
MREEEHNRARERAEEEMET - R_F
—NF+-A=+—R0 HERENHNEAE
BN AM B RERME22 -

BREESES  HEMNEE/RARLERNE

BRIIEZEREENLEESNALE -
BREESRE  HRIEES/SEARLERE
SRR EREENLEESNARE °

HEERE RN EREMZ B Kz 5KEZ
EHBEENRERE
EERRARENEMEZEEESRZ SR
ﬁém%%&ﬁm SERBUWEREMGE -
RZB-NF+_A=+—8 HEREN
%Aﬁﬁ\ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁmo

BREBESRTAZTLE  $EMRA
EREMEzEEREIEORERENRD
B SRERVERTAXTES @ BRd
AREREMEZEREIIROREREN
/L/{E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Operating segment information

For management purposes, the Group’s business activity
is organised into a single operating segment, being
investments in securities listed on recognised stock
exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation. Accordingly, no
operating segment information to be presented.

(b) Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue, other revenue and other gains and losses by
geographical location which is based on the country
of domicile or place of listing of the investees and
counterparties as appropriate:

8.

2 &
(a) RE D MWEFR
EREREN ~&EH E’J%i‘*ié%ﬁiﬁiﬁk‘ﬁi“
ig%ﬁ% El—J%XéEAEWU u X%Fﬁ'i
MZEFIEBRFNERNEREEER
BEEMIRE - Bt > W EIBELEDHE
% o

(b) i & &
TREFERERAERXSHFHEHBE KK
Em(RERBERLME)EDNHIEBELE -
i 7R SR B 2 WA~ Bt A BA R E 4t U 2
RIGEEHN D :

2018 2017
—e-N% —E—t%
HK$°000 HK$’000
THER FHT
Revenue and other revenue WA R E At U A
Hong Kong BB 11,222 15,679
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tf
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FHTT
Other gains and losses Hofh iz & & 18
Hong Kong BB (75,961) (207,264)
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, REEZZFT-—N\NFR_FT—+tF+=A

there were no dividend income from the Group’s unlisted
investments.

Non-current assets are not presented in the geographical
information as they are all located in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

9. REVENUE 9. WA
2018 2017
S S —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHBT
Interest income from: FEWA -

— bank deposits — RITHER 2 1
— loan notes — BERER 1,483 444

— convertible bonds designated at — EERBEAALER

financial assets at FVTPL BEuERSRE2
T Rl & E ) A ERE S 9,327 10,125
10,812 10,570
10. OTHER REVENUE 10. H g A

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —EF—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
Other payables written back it 85 E At FE < 5K 120 5,108
Sundry income T8 W 25 290 1
410 5,109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

11.OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

MEbBKRERER

2018 2017
ZEB-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Unrealised fair value (losses)/gainson #ZAAEREZRIIEZEREEZ
financial assets at FVTPL: REBEAAE(EE), W
— listed securities — EWRESH (10,817) (108,461)
— unlisted convertible bonds — BERBRAABEBREBEHEERIIEZ
designated at financial assets at THMEBENI LA ERES
FVTPL 1,778 (14,328)
— Private equity fund designated at — EEARAABERIBERIEZ
financial assets at FVTPL CREENLEESD (5,459) —
Net realised loss on disposals of HEEREAABERERRIERZ
financial assets at FVTPL: CREE E’J B 18 F 8
— listed securities — FTHiE3 (45,350) (84,437)
— unlisted convertible bonds —RBEAREAANERERE
designated at financial assets at IRz eRMEEMIE LT
FVTPL A E 4 15 25 (15,851) —
Gain on disposals of unlisted convertible (& 15 F A& A o BN B IR
bonds designated at financial assets SR & RMEEMNIE LT
at FVTPL AERES kS 5,081 —
Net loss on financial assets at FVTPL R AR EREZFERIIEZ
CREENBIEFE (70,618) (207,226)
Impairment losses on goodwill SRR R — (38)
Impairment losses on loan notes EREZEBREER (4,992) —
Impairment losses on deposits mReREER (351) -
(75,961) (207,264)

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

FINANCE COSTS 1.8 B8 B

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHBT
Imputed interest on shareholder's loan R E X F & 1,710 —
Imputed interest on convertible bonds A & ¥ & % £ B 651 805
Imputed interest on promissory notes A EFE 1,618 1,215
Interest on other borrowings H fih & KA 2 188 1,276
4,167 3,296

LOSS BEFORE TAX 13.RBLATE B

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)
the following:

BREAMBECINER (Gt THEEA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHERT F& T
Auditor's remuneration % SR B & 295 225
Management fees BB 2,980 2,980
Exchange loss/(gain), net X & (k) F58 4 (5)
Depreciation of property, ME BEREETE
plant and equipment 14 18
Impairment losses on goodwill R E & B — 38
Impairment losses on loan notes EREZEBREER 4,992 —
Impairment losses on deposits ReREEBE 351 =
Employee benefits expenses: EERAAXL :
— Salaries, allowance and — e RENEYN =
benefits in kind 2,672 2,038
— Contributions to defined — R ARG B R
contribution plan* 58 54
2,730 2,092
Operating leases in respect of land and =+ ) &2 18 5 2 48 & F8 47
buildings 570 945

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 December 2018 and 2017
to reduce future contributions. There was no outstanding
contribution to the plan at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

RE=FE—NEFER=T—+tF+-_A=+T—HIER
TEHRETE Z B8 LR A] AE S R R K »
RZE—NER-_ZE—tE+_A=+—ANE
MR Z A B 2 gk e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

14.INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements since the Group has no
estimated assessable profit for the year (2017: nil).

Reconciliation between income tax and the product of the

14. Fr 58
RAEE R + i A A = M 3 4 1 5 e ST 7 78
A B R R N IR B S R SR B

A It I 8 1E
(ZZE—tF: &) -

FrEPEREERERN AT ZBRBATEBIRZ

Group’s loss before tax at applicable tax rate is set out below: HERWMT :
2018 2017
ZEB-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHBT
Loss before tax B %4 Al & 18 (78,458) (205,508)
Notional tax on loss before tax, G AIERZ2ERIER
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax B 7B F4F B A % 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) —ZE—+tF :16.5%)FTE (12,946) (33,909)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible &Mz T~ TR 2 2
for tax purpose k- 3,277 20,406
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k J& & 52 7 T8 &5 18 < 7 75 o2 22 9,671 13,549
Tax effect of temporary differences not KEBRRZEREZENH S E
recognised (2) (46)
Income tax P15 3t — —

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

15.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 15.EERNSREBAB ZFH
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: () EEFHMFHMOT :
2018
—E-N\F
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined

and benefits contribution

Fees in kind plan Total
e 2H REMRK
e REYF = ot Bl At R
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT THERT THERT THERT
Executive Directors: HITES .
Chau Wai Hing R — 486 18 504
Wu Ming Gai W = 137 7 144
Non-executive Directors: FHTES :
William Keith Jacobsen ERHE 144 — — 144
Mak Hing Keung Thomas' o 261 — — 261
Chen Albert? R T 1752 75 — — 75
Hui Man Ho Ivan3 B 79 — — 79
Wong Chung Yan Sammy? mHT7 1 — — 1
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES !
Directors:
Sio Chan In Devin* BER 160 — — 160
Law Siu Hung Pauls 7 D 1fEs 84 — — 84
Wong Ching Wans FTEEs 84 — — 84
Wong Chung Yan Sammy? |7 129 — — 129
Chan Man Yi8 FeR i 1z 44 — — 44
Leung Yin Ting® 2 3% I 6 — — 6
Jiang Qian® o 6 — — 6
1,073 623 25 1,721
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

15.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows:
(Continued)

15.EEREREBABEZHM (&)

(a) EEFM=ROT : (F)

2017
—E—tF
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind plan Total
Fo 2R REMN
we REYF & = Bl A% wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TE R THER TET TET
Executive Directors: HTES !
Chau Wai Hing BN — 420 18 438
Wu Ming Gai HAsAE — 120 6 126
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
William Keith Jacobsen EEH 120 — — 120
Mak Hing Keung Thomas' B E g 240 — — 240
Independent Non-executive BYEHTES :
Directors:
Sio Chan In Devin¢ R A 120 — = 120
Law Siu Hung Pauls D1 120 — — 120
Wong Ching Wané HEs 120 — — 120
720 540 24 1,284

Mak Hing Keung Thomas resigned as a non-executive
director on 19 November 2018.

Chen Albert was appointed as a non-executive director on 1
August 2018.

Hui Man Ho Ivan was appointed as a non-executive director
on 23 March 2018 and retired as a non-executive director on
28 June 2018.

Sio Chan In Devin resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 14 December 2018.

Law Siu Hung Paul retired as an independent non-executive
director on 28 June 2018.

Wong Ching Wan retired as an independent non-executive
director on 28 June 2018.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows:
(Continued)

v Wong Chung Yan Sammy was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 23 March 2018 and re-designated
as non-executive director on 14 December 2018.

8 Chan Man Yi was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 21 August 2018.

® Leung Yin Ting was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 14 December 2018.

0 Jiang Qian was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 14 December 2018.

Note: There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2017: two)
directors whose emoluments were disclosed above. The

e MBRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

5. EEREREBABZHMH (&)

(a) EEFM=ROT : (F)

T EBPLCR T NF=ZA-_T+=ZHEZER
BUFERTES IR T NAF+-A+@
AERESFERTES -

¢ BRBEER-_ZE-NFNA-_+-—HEZER
BYFATES -

° REABR-_ZF-N\FT_AtHBEZER
BYIENTES -

vOEFRAN_E-N\FT_ATHBEERERSB
VIFHITES -

Rrat - FRALEARESH 2 KR E % ME R
EH L e

EEBREHFALT

FRNAEERIEZ G T ALTERE=2(2
T—+tF WMRB)ES HEMeEFE LXE
EoFRNEEMB(ZZE—LF : =) AL

(b)

emoluments of the remaining two (2017: three) individuals &M T -
during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THET
Salaries, allowances and e EUREDAR
benefits in kind 919 751
Contributions to defined 5 SR ET S K
contribution plan 32 30
951 781
Note: The emoluments of the two (2017: three) individuals are Hat: ME(ZE—tF: =F)ATz2BM&8n

within the band from nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, there was no discretionary cash bonus
paid or payables to the directors and the five highest paid
individuals (2017: Nil).

J- = 7% 7L 21,000,000 T Z 18 € °

REAR  THENKENTEERLERSHA
THRBREEA(ZT L5 &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U 75 8 = M aE

e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

15.DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Senior management’s emoluments

Senior management represents the executive directors.
The emoluments paid or payable to senior management
during the year are as follows:

5. EEREREBABZHMH (&)

(c) EREEEH M

BREEBEATES - RAFEENB MK

ENEREEENFHHMMOT

2018 2017

—E-NF —2—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHBT

Directors’ fees EEHe — —
Salaries, allowances and e FUREDMA=

benefits in kind 623 540

Contributions to defined FE HERET B fE K
contribution plan 25 24
648 564

The emoluments paid or payable to the two (2017: two)
members of senior management were within the band
from nil to HK$1,000,000.

Directors' material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and
contract in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director's connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

16.

e MBRRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

BREE
ARRBEBEAREERERNBERNATEEG

s

Loss &8
2018 2017
—E2-N\% —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT T T
Loss for the purposes of basic BREAEBFEHR
loss per share Ffr FA #9518 (78,458) (205,508)
Number of shares v =]
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—+tF
000 ‘000
TR + &%
Issued ordinary shares at REFEZETHE AR
the beginning of year 85,929 85,929
Effect of shares issued on placements &R EITRH N FE 12,757 =
Weighted average number of ordinary & JxE AN 518 5t & b
shares for the purpose of calculating Fir A 9 3 38 A% A9 N 42 2 15 25
basic loss per share 98,686 85,929

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the convertible
bonds outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss
per share amount presented.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

17.

BE_Z-N\FR-ZF-—tF+-_A=+—HL
FE BHRAREEITSERESHIIRNTHRE
AEBSRESRESERE - P A &S 53R
SREABEELETAE -

g
EREeTREREBE T \FR-ZT—+tF
TZA=THLFRERMHRE °

Annual Report 20185

137



138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

18.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. W%  -HWENRRKRE

Leasehold Office Furniture and
improvements equipment fixtures Total
HEWERE N RRR#%E &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FTHT THET FHAT
Cost D%
At 1 January 2017 R-—B—+&E—F—H 347 533 572 1,452
Written off 8 (347) — — (347)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2018 k=ZZ—-N\F—HF—H — B89 572 1,105
Additions NE = 4 _— 4
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H — 537 572 1,109
Accumulated depreciation 2BFE
At 1 January 2017 R-—ZE—+&—HF—H 347 499 559 1,405
Provided for the year FREHE — 9 9 18
Written off 1 85 (347) — — (347)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+E+_A=+—H
1 January 2018 k=ZZ—-N\F—HF—H — 508 568 1,076
Provided for the year FREE — 10 4 14
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\FE+-A=+—H — 518 572 1,090
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\F+-H=1+—H = 19 = 19
At 31 December 2017 NR_EBE—+t&+-_A=+—H — 25 4 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

19. GOODWILL 19.% 8
HK$°000
FERT
Cost R A
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, RZE—+tF—HF—8 "
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —tF+=ZA=+—8H"
—E-NF-HA—BkK
—F-N\F+=-A=t+—8H 38
Accumulated impairment losses Z2BRE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H =
Impairment loss recognised during the year FEAERBEERE 38
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and RZF—+tF+=-A=+—80 -
31 December 2018 - NF—HA—8kK
- N\F+-_A=+—H 38

Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018

R-ZE-N\F+-_H=+—8H —

At 31 December 2017 n=

—+&E+=-A=+—8” =

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) that is
expected to benefit from that business combination. Before
recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated to Studio V Limited (“Studio V”), a
subsidiary of the Company, which is considered to be a single
CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted revenue during the period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the businesses
which the CGU operates. Budgeted revenue is based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

EhFEEHPRENHEERBR IR TEHAZ
HREZCEEHNRESCELNEL((ReELE
7Tl)  EHRMEEER  HENEESEEL
7 B2 F 2K A 7] Bff /8 A 5]Studio V Limited ([ Studio
V) HEESRAE—HEELET °

ﬁﬁEﬁEﬁMTWEAﬁmﬁ%ﬁ@éME
EoEREEFENERBRRABREBEHEA
FHRE BREERBERANRR - AKEER
RREAMSHEEERMEENFERREEN
BrRERBABATMEMEFITRE - BR K
REeERETMREEBNRPTHEERERE
RER - AERANEEHOERE TS ERNTE
HIRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B=

19.

20.

—E-N\F+A=+—HILFE

GOODWILL (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group prepared
cash flow forecasts derived from the then most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period using the growth rate of 5%.
This rate did not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant businesses. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the CGU was 7.3%.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
had revised its budget and cash flow forecast of Studio
V as a result of change in market condition. The goodwill
has therefore reduced to its recoverable amount through
recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of
HK$38,000.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

19.% 8 (&)

BE_Z—R"E+-A=+—B AEEREE
ERARKRAFRAENEROPRP B RERER
SREBIRA - FEREERIRA%NIE R K o %
BEXIMEBHBEENFEFARAERER - AR
FRREELETELNBARSRENN XS
7.3% °

REBEE-_T—tF+_A=T—HLEFER "
HRMIERREE - Bt - AEB S RETES
Studlo VEITEMRERIRS RERR - Atk - &

AR BT i B R (B85 1838,00078 JT R AL =
ETH&Z@%%E e

20 H WA - BEREANNE

2018 2017
ZEB-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER F T
Other receivables (note a) H th & WKk (KT 77Ea) 149 17
Deposits paid for investments (note b) L% & BT 1 89 & & (47 7Eb) 15,149 7,500
Other deposits HEfize 17 149
Prepayments T8 IR 449 279
15,764 7,945

Notes: =

(a) At the end of reporting period, the balance of other receivables
was neither past due nor impaired. No ageing analysis to be
disclosed in respect of other receivables. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

(a) MIMEHR  Hi KA A %Eﬁﬂ}@ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B o I M 5 E (B ORI B BRIk D AT - AR
ERR AENASENEBLE ﬁEﬁ%ﬁ?\ﬁﬂﬁ
EERIMEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) Deposits paid for investments represent earnest money amounted
to HK$10,000,000 (“Deposit 1”) and HK$5,500,000 (“Deposit
2”) paid by the Group for the proposed investments to two
independent third parties.

Deposit 1

On 5 November 2018, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MoU 1”) with an independent third party
(“Issuer 1”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay the
Deposit 1 to the Issuer 1 as an earnest money for the proposed
acquisition of shares in the principal amount of HK$10,000,000
to be issued by the Issuer 1 (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The
completion of the Proposed Acquisition is subject to the fulfillment
of conditions precedent of the MoU 1 including satisfaction of due
diligence works on Issuer 1.

On 30 December 2018, the Company entered into an extension
agreement with the Issuer 1, to extend the completion date of the
Proposed Acquisition to 30 June 2019.

Deposit 2

On 12 August 2016, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MoU 2”) with an independent third party
(“Issuer 2”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay the
Deposit 2 to the Issuer 2 as an earnest money for the proposed
subscription of redeemable convertible notes in the principal
amount not exceeding HK$26,000,000 to be issued by the Issuer
2 (the “Proposed Subscription”). The completion of the Proposed
Subscription is subject to the fulfillment of conditions precedent of
the MoU 2 including satisfaction of due diligence works on Issuer
2.

On 4 October 2016, 30 December 2016, 31 March 2017, 16
June 2017, 1 January 2018, 1 July 2018 and 30 December
2018, the Company entered into a subscription agreement and
six supplemental subscription agreements with the Issuer 2, to
extend the completion date of the Proposed Subscription to 31
December 2016, 31 March 2017, 30 June 2017, 31 December
2017, 30 June 2018, 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2019
respectively due to more time is needed to conduct due diligence
work on issuer 2.

The amount of deposits paid for investments is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within 5 days to 7 days upon request
in the event that the Proposed Acquisition and Proposed
Subscription are not completed.

During the year, provision for impairment of approximately
HK$351,000 is made for 12m ECL on deposits.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—HILFE

20 Htb B R - HE RN FIE(K)

Hiat - (&)

(b)

MEEMTNNRSAAEEREZRERMA
BYFE=FMXHHHES S 5410,000,0007 7T
(r%&£11) %5,500,000% 7T ([1R&2]) °

Z&1

R-ZE—NE+—AHB  ARREBIE=H
(MEFETMDITLFRBERS((RRERE]) -
BHARRREMBETAIMNES - (FAREZK
BE 1% B 817 AMFT 8 97 4N € %8 /410,000,000 7T 2
BH(TZZRESEDNHES - ERWESE
BRERBESSRINEREEEBITRT STX -
HAbhaEE BT AMETERESTIE -

RZZE—NEFE+=ZA=+H  ~NAREETAIF]
ViERGZ  SERUEBEENTKAEHTCES
—E-NFAA=F+H-

Re2

RZFE—AR"ENA+=ZA ARAREBIE=%
(MFETA2DFTumBEERE((RRESE2]) -
Bt  ARAIREREZRBES BT A2FET
7K % iR #826,000,0007% 7T 2 A fE B 7] 85 5 = %
(fi%%ﬂ%%lﬁ)iﬁ?ﬁ%zu’ﬁﬁpﬁx %)%é‘é‘ﬁ
A2 BZRBZHAFREESER2H K IRIES
EE1TE 7577:552 ERAKER %ﬁ%’fﬁ/\z
TEBRESTHE

RZFE—ANFE+ANB  —E—X"F+=-A=+
A - —E—+t&=ZA=+—H8 —ZT—t4F~A

tAB ZB-\F-A—B —F-N\FLA-
AR-F-NFt=A=+H &2 T@ﬁﬁA

2R LR E = 6D M RBHE - A0 B2
=R ﬁ§$lﬁﬁ’]nﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂkz_i_;*ﬁ¢+:ﬂ

=+t-B --F—tF=A=+-8 —F—t
fﬁ/\ﬁ]:‘f“a —T—+tHF+=ZA=+—8"
- N\EAA=TE —F-NFTA=+-—

BR-—ZF-AFRAA=+H BEAFEEZZHHIA
HETANZETEREETIE -

REEAXNNESSHEABEER 2ERRE

ZRBEFEREZZERBEETETRLTKNERLTA
EERNERETRAANER -
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Annual Report 20185

141



142

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

21.LOAN NOTES

21.BEREE

Impairment Interest

loss income

recognised Carrying recognised

Subscription Interest during the amount as at during the

Loan note name As at 31 December amount receivables year 31 December year
Rt+=A

FRER EF=1[E FARA

EREBEER R+t=A=+—8H RBERE & W FI B w18 5 1B WERHE £ 2 F 2 WA

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THETT FHETT FHET FET FHET

LN1 2018 3,000 357 514 2,843 255

ERER 2017 3,000 357 - 3,357 255

LN2 2018 3,000 189 514 2,675 255

BERERE2 2017 3,000 189 - 3,189 189

LN3 2018 5,500 342 943 4,899 342

EREES 2017 = - - - =

LN4 2018 24,000 316 1,604 22,712 316

ERE R4 2017 - = = = |

LN5 2018 24,000 1% 1,417 22,898 1%

ERERES 2017 = - - - =

(i)

On 8 August 2016 and 5 April 2017, the Group had
subscribed two trenches of HK$ denominated loan notes
(the “LN1” and “LN2"), of principal value of HK$3,000,000
each issued by an independent third party, Zhongda
International Holdings Limited, which is principally
engaged in trading of consumer electronic products, with
an aggregated amount of HK$6,000,000. On 9 April 2018,
the Group had further subscribed another trench of HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN3”), of principal value of
HK$5,500,000 issued by the issuer of LN1 and LN2. LN1,
LN2 and LN3 bear fixed interest at 8.5% per annum with
maturity of one year from their respective dates of issue
and are measured at amortised cost. No conversion right
is attached to LN1, LN2 and LN3 to be exercised by the
Company.

On 7 August 2017, 28 March 2018 and 7 August 2018,
the Company entered into three extension agreements
with the issuer, to extend the maturity dates of LN1 and
LN2 to 8 August 2018, 8 August 2019 and 5 April 2019.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

RZE—R"FNANBER=ZFT—tFWEA
AR AEEEREMBH—EZBILFE=FH
(M RBBRERERAR  TBREETHE
EmZ5)%{THASE A3,000,000/% 5T H S
TERZR(ERZR1IRIERER2])
#2508 56,000,0008 7L c R=ZF— \FWA N
H AEEE—PREZTERZER1IRE
REBE2RET AFMEITH RS 5,500,000
BITHBTEREBR(EREES]) - BEXR
ZE ERZBR2RERZRIZEEF A
K8 5%t EAE - WHHS 5 E/THHRET
—FHHARZRBHEHAAGTZE -BERER1
BEREE2 & E 5K 5 330 £ M 55 F {a] 65 #2 4
FEARDFITE o

R=_ZFE—+t&ENA+tB - —ZFE—NFE=ZA
“+tNANBE=ZZE—N\FNAELH A FH
BOAFMN=ZBERHZ  UBEREE
FEREB2NIHPEEEE=-F—NF)N
ANB - ZE—NAFNANBE=ZZ—NF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.LOAN NOTES (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

On 14 November 2018, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN4”) of principal value of
HK$24,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in PRC, #¥Il:= & &
BB A R A A, which is principally engaged in
developing and designing mechanical equipment, maturity
of three years from date of issue. LN4 bears fixed interest
at 10% per annum and is measured at amortised cost.

On 14 November 2018, the Group had subscribed HK$
denominated loan note (the “LN5”) of principal value of
HK$24,000,000 issued by an independent third party
which is private entity established in PRC, F#III:ZE&E &
o M 3% #5 A IR A A), which is principally engaged in
providing integrated R&D, design, sales and after-sales
service in packaging equipment, maturity of three years
from dates of issue. LN5 bears fixed interest at 10% per
annum and is measured at amortised cost.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

21.EREHB(E)

(i) RZZFE—NFE+—A+HEHA  AEEERH

BTERER(ERER4L]) AeBEA
24,000,000/ 7T + B — & A&7 F B AL B AL
ABEBNBYE=HCFIEEBA S E#
WERAR  TEXEHREIERABRR
ST 31T  RETHHEASERE - BERE
447 [E & F F R10%:T B 5 B K 37 8 8 R
KEtE o

(i) R=ZFE—N\F+—A+HB  AEEERE

BLTERER((ERERS])  AeEBEA
24,000,000/ 7T + B — & A F B K 32 8 AL
ABEBOBIYE=FHORIZERE B F#ME
HEERAR  EENEREDEZIBEOES
WEE - R HERSEBRE) BT RE
THHEREIFE - ERZEBSZEEFF
K10%:T EF B RIZEHEK AT E -

2018 2017

=F TUE: —E—t%

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEx FH&T

Loan notes BEREE 59,500 6,000
Interest receivables & U ] B 1,519 546
Impairment losses B & 18 (4,992) —
At 31 December R+t-—_A=+—H 56,027 6,546
Less: current portion o BNEAER & (10,417) (6,546)
Non-current portion JE BN EA =6 4 45,610 —

The carrying amount of the loan notes approximates to its fair
value.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of the loan notes.

%%H

ERFEBENEESBEEOEQAE-

B SAGERRHOASERZENERE

o IfF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

2.RBRAAREREERIBZEREE

2018 2017
ZEB-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Trading securities (note a) R 5 & % (K ita) 31,812 90,326
Convertible bonds designated at BEARAAEBEREZENERZ
financial assets at FVTPL (note b) CREEMNAEIRES (M Zb) 39,715 111,073
Private equity fund designated at BEAERAABEREBREIERZ
financial assets at FVTPL (note c) CRMEENLEES (K itc) 13,542 =
85,069 201,399
Notes: Hiit -
(a) Trading securities (a) XEEH
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Current assets: MBEE :
Equity securities held for trading RESGMBAENEREF
at market value Rm%EERE
—Listed in Hong Kong —H/ABEEM 31,812 90,326

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) 2. RZAARERERRIEZESMEE (F)
Notes: (Continued) it (&)
(a) Trading securities (Continued) (a) REFZ (&)
At the end of reporting period, details of the Group’s major listed RBEHR AEBFTE L TESBLFNFEBD
equity securities are as follows: 1

Accumulated

fair value
losses on
investment
recognised
in the
Dividend consolidated
income Net assets financial
Proportion received  attributable statements
Place of As at  of investee’s during the to the during the
Stock name Incorporation 31 December capital owned Cost  Market value year investment year
REEER
EiREHH
Fi#" FR BRAERAMN
Rt=A HRERA Fii B REEM 2HRE
B & LA L 3t B Eqr=F EA LA %S miEEE REBA BERE DREBR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAT TAL TEL TEL TEL
Hong Kong
EE
China Oil Gangran Energy Group Cayman Islands 2018 - — — — - —
Holdings Limited (“China Oil") (note i) R & & 2017 0.75% 4,920 2,855 — 986 (2,065)
PEEREREEEREBR AR
(T b B ) (B 22i)
On Real International Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands 2018 6.04% 27,645 13,918 — 4,723 (13,727)
(“On Real Int'l") (note ii) HEHRE 2017 5.81% 89,063 27,645 — 3,964 (61,418)
TR ERERA A
(TG BB R ) (4 i)
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited Cayman Islands 2018 1.62% 55,131 8,404 — — (46,727)
(“Classified”) (note iii) HEHS 2017 8.11% 86,651 55,131 — 3,069 (31,520)
([ Classified |) (###iii)
Time2U International Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands 2018 8.12% 1,658 1,178 — 51 (480)
(“Time2U") (note iv) HEHRE 2017 14.98% 4,830 1,658 — 100 (3,172)
Py ] B AR BB 4R R B TR 2 )
(T MR ) (4 aziv)
China 33 Media Group Limited Cayman Islands 2018 0.90% 1,605 1,036 — 5 (569)
(“China 33”) (note v) HEHS 2017 0.90% 5,851 1,605 — 5 (4,246)
FE==EEEEFRAA
(TRE==1)(Hv)
Kinetix System Holding Limited Cayman Islands 2018 0.41% 41,190 5,767 = 168 (35,423)
(“Kinetix System”) (note vi) HEHE 2017 — — — — — _
EBERERAA
(TR 1) (Hftvi)

Annual Report 201853 145



146

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(a) Trading securities (Continued)
Unless otherwise specified, all of the above investments are
directly held by the Company.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

China Oil is mainly engaged in gas and oil exploitation, LNG
and CNG sales, city natural gas sales, primary gas filling
stations and LNG filling stations.

On Real Int'l is principally engaged in the trading and
manufacturing of two-way radio, baby monitors and other
communication devices.

Classified is engaged in the business of food and beverage
with primary focus on offering western cuisine.

Time2U is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales
of own-branded watches, OEM watches and third party
watches.

China 33 is mainly engaged in film investment, money
business and advertising services.

Kinetix System is mainly engaged in provision of information
technology infrastructure solution services.

As of 31 December 2018, no trading securities (2017:
approximately HK$85,911,000) were pledged to a securities
broker to secure margin loans borrowed by the Group (note 25).

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

2. BZAABEREERIGZEMEE (H)
Hiat - (&)

(a) XBEH(E)
BESERR AANEERBLIFERE -

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

REBMHNEZEB I BRARLAH
HEBRILRARREBHERAR - HERTR
AR VIR IE FRE R AR IR G -

ZHBEBRERNEZEKREE RN EE W
ERHERER BREREREMBME
ﬁ o

Classifiedt SRR EH - TZRHEFHE -

REBMEZNES EMmMEFEK  OEMFT K
RE=DFERHUERHEE -

PE=Z=ZIZXEEFXRE BN REBM
BEERT

REETEN=RMESRMERRIEHERT
=R -

HE-_ZTZ-—NF+_A=+—8 HKEBLEHK
FRARGBFFERTFTELFEL(ZZE—EF 4
85,911,000 70) LS ASEEANKREESE
K (Kt sE25) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

2. BZAABEREERIGZEHMEE (H)

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL

At the end of reporting period, details of major unlisted

convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL are as
follows:
Place of As at
Name of investee Incorporation 31 December
R+=AH
WRER BB F B 3 4t B ==
Openroad Corporate Services Hong Kong 2018
Limited (“CB1”)
BEELCERBARR A & 2017
(FrreEmEs11)
Profit Gain Finance Limited (“CB2”) Hong Kong 2018
BRMBERIB([AIERES2]) & 2017
Cross Consultants Limited (“CB3”)  Hong Kong 2018
([ArEg#afE3]) BE 2017
Openroad Professional Assurance  Hong Kong 2018
Limited (“CB4”)
BEEZXEZERAQA &8 2017
(FArsEmEsR41)
HF Financial Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 2018
Limited (“CB5”)
EEcmER(EB)ARAA &8 2017
(TR E55])

All of the above investments are directly held by the Company.

Hiat (&)

(b) EEREAAEREBSRRIIFZEMEENTE

BES

RBEHER TENRALERNBRKIKZE

BMAEMFLMABRESHFEOT

Cost

A
HK$'000
TAT

15,000

20,000
20,000

30,000

30,000

19,700

19,700

Interest
income
recognised
during the
year

£
PR ¥ 52
F2BA
HK$'000
TAT
1,261
1,350
1,800

1,800

2,345
2,700

2,345

2,700

1,575

1,575

Accumulated
fair value
losses on

investment
recognised
in the
consolidated
financial
statements
during the
year
REAFER
EREMT
RERPEAN
ZERE
AREER
HK$'000
FAET

(1,432)

3,634
(2,170)

(6,150)

(3,001)

(1,856)

(1,575)

AABEERFALIMERE -
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Fair value

ARE
HK$'000
TET

14,534

19,625
19,384

28,163

28,622

20,090

20,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) Convertible bonds designated at financial assets at FVTPL
(Continued)
Binomial and partial different model were used for valuation of the
above convertible bonds. The inputs into the valuation models as
at 31 December 2018 were as follows:

2. BARERERRIGZEMEE (R)
Hiz ()

(b) EERRAABREBESZRIGZEREENTE

BmEs (|

A ERESER - HARKARREM D EAE
THEE - R_Z-NF+_HA=+—8 @M
BEEAN@MANT :

31 December 2018
“E-\f+tZBA=t-H

Subscription date
REBES

Maturity date

gilpc )=

Coupon rate (per annum)
FHER(BF
Exercise price per share
BRTEE

Risk free rate
@ B A

Expected life (years)
REHR (F)
Expected volatility
BHRE X

Expected dividend yield
EHREX

Valuation methodology
hER %

Fair value performed by:

RAERKEM

On 20 March 2018 and 18 July 2018, the Company entered
into extension agreements with the investees, to extend the

CB2 CB5

TEKES2 AERESS

13 April 2015 28 July 2016
—A§MA+=H ZT-~"FtA=+/N\B
13 April 2019 28 July 2019
—WEWmA+=H —E-NAFtA=+/\RB
9% 8%

HK$5,0007% 7T HK$14,723/% &
1.84% 1.77%

0.28 0.573

41% 38%

Hull Model Partial Differential Model
AR R DER

Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited (“Ravia”)
HERRAEEABTRAA
([wE])

Peak Vision Appraisal Limited

(“Peak Vision”)
BEABERAA
(MRl

*AE B = +E&7;*ﬂ¢tﬂ+ﬂ
A B EFRERF R LER G

7 5l

maturity dates of CB2 and CB5 to 13 April 2019 and 28 July 2019
respectively.

Both Ravia and Peak Vision are independent firms of professional
valuers appointed by the Company to carry out the valuations of
the Group’s convertible bonds designated at financial assets at
FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

2. BZAABEREERIGZEHMEE (H)
Hiat (&)

(c) Private equity fund designated at financial assets at FVTPL (c) BEARAABEREZRIRZERMEENALE

On 29 June 2018, the Group had subscribed 39.25% of a private
equity fund “Fund investment” incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, HF Pre-IPO Fund, of principal value of HK$19,001,000.
As of 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Fund investment
was approximately HK$13,542,000 (2017: nil). During the
year, the unrealised loss recognised of the Fund Investment
approximately HK$5,459,000 (2017: nil).

The Fund investment is redeemable based on the prevailing
redemption price less all applicable fees.

Asset approach was used for valuation of the private equity fund.
The inputs into the valuation models as at 31 December 2018
were as follows:

Subscription date
R B

Total number of shares held
FANRNAH
Subscribed share capital
8 H A AR

Net assets value per share
SREEFE

Valuation methodology
hEFT A

Fair value performed by:

DA E G ER :

Ravia is an independent firm of professional valuer appointed
by the Company to carry out the valuation of the Group’s private
equity fund designated at financial assets at FVTPL.

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

2%

REZFE—NFEAA=Z+THLE  A5ERE—BEH
S BB itk 32 B9 AL E & S HF Pre-IPO Fund ([ &
/&) #39.25% ' A & & E A 19,001,000 75
T oHEZE-N\F+-A=+—H  ELRKREHN
A RMEH 513,542,000 (T —H4F : &)
FA - ESBREBRHNKREIHEEIEL /5,459,000
BIL(ZT—LF : &) -

HEeRERBEMBEQNERREMAERERA
FLAEME -

EEEZANELEECETHE R-F—/N\F
T-A=t—BHEERANBABEDT :

31 December 2018
Private Equity Fund
—E2-N\F
+=—A=+-—-H
hEES

29 June 2018
—E-N\F
NAZTAR
24,213

39.25%

HK$559.26
559.26% T
Asset Approach
BEXE

Ravia

e

WERARAZRENBYEXMGERR HAKEEER
BAREREBRRIRZEREENLEESETHE -

. ELAAEREMZE WSS R
ZEMEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER F#& T
Unlisted equity investments designated $57E & A 7t B 7 & b & 1 Y 25 51| BR
at financial assets at FVTOCI B IE LR ERE 35,176 i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (Continued)

On 6 June 2018 and 7 December 2018, the Group had
subscribed 18.18% and 20% equity interest of a Hong Kong
incorporated private entity and an Anguilla incorporated
private entity, HF Finance Limited (the “HF Finance”) and
Perfect Path, which are engaged in money lending business
and gold mining business at considerations of HK$8,000,000
and HK$18,500,000 respectively. As of 31 December 2018,
the fair value of the equity investments were approximately
HK$6,176,000 and HK$29,000,000 respectively.

Despite the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, however, under contractual arrangements, the other
shareholders control the composition of the board of directors
and have control over Perfect Path. The directors of the
Company consider that the Group does not have significant
influence over Perfect Path and it is therefore the unlisted
equity investments are designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI.

Income approach were used for valuations of the above
equity interests. The inputs into the valuation models as at 31
December 2018 were as follows:

Subscription date

REAH

Total number of shares held

ARG BB

Subscription price

R E

Proportion of investee's capital owned
FT#E G iR & N Al & 2 L

Dividend income received during the year
F R AT RER B A

Net assets attributable to the investment (Note)
REBIGEEEFEN L)

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised during the year
RAFERRHD AR ERZ, (EE)
Expected dividend yield

TRHER B =

Discount rate

SRR

Valuation methodology

BB R A

Fair value performed by:

AREBERD

Note: Figures were based on the management accounts as at 31
December 2018 provided by the investees.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

23. B AANEREMEZTE KRR

ZEMEE(E)
R-ZE—NEFENANBE-_Z—N\HF+_A
+ H - XN& B 575 K E 8,000,000 % T &
18,500,000 7T 38 B8 79 Bl I & 78 5k Bk SZ B9 FL A
& B2HF Finance Limited ([HF Financel) X A %
= B 5F it 5K 32 B9 FL A E BEPerfect Pathf18.18%
R20%MEH#E EAoRIt EmEXB R SHEMARE
B - BE-_ZE-NE+-_A=+—H BRELKSE
B AR ES B4 56,176,000 7T 5 29,000,000
= 5

B E AN &£ E 5 GPerfect Pathfy20%% R # A
o RESOTHE  HMREZESESSMAS
45K - W HPerfect Path e K ARIEZR AN
% [F ¥Perfect Path EE AT Z S - Btk IF
MREREREEAEARERE M2 E KT
NERMEE -

WeEAR LS GE R_F—-NAF+_H
=S+t RAERENGAREBOT

31 December 2018
ZE-NF+=ZHA=+—H

HF Finance Perfect Path

8 June 2018 7 December 2018
—ZEZ—-NFEXANH —ZE-NFE+=ZA+tH
10,000,000 200,000
10,000,000 % 200,000%

HK$8,000,000% 7T HK$18,500,000/% 7T

18.18% 20%
(HK$18,000% 7t) HK$30,479,000% 7T
(HK$1,824,000/% JT) HK$10,500,000/% 7T
18% 12%

Income Method Income Method

W g % W s %
Ravia Ravia
I & I &

BEEAARARBNBE_T—N\F

iz - & 5%
+ +—HHEEERE -

[1

ER
A

>



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (Continued)

Ravia is an independent firm of professional valuer appointed
by the Company to carry out the valuations of the Group’s
unlisted equity investments designated at financial assets at
FVTOCI.

DUE FROM SECURITIES BROKERS

Amounts due from securities brokers represent deposits
placed with securities brokers for the trading of listed
investments which are unsecured, bearing interest at a range
between 0.0005% and 0.001% (2017: 0.0005% and 0.001%)
per annum and repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is
disclosed in respect of amounts due from securities brokers.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the Group’s
business nature.

DUE TO SECURITIES BROKERS

Amounts due to securities brokers represent credit facility
provided by securities brokers, bearing interest at a range
between 8% to 10.375% (2017: 15%) per annum and
repayable on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in
respect of amounts due to securities brokers. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

23.

24,

25.

RE M B ERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

B ERE 2 mEYKES K
ZEBMEE(H)
WERARAEZENBLERMEERR HAE
BiEERBRANEREMEZERSIIR I SRE
EMFFLTBREREETHE -

B W 3 2 R A2 KR
BEBACLRERESFELREERS LT
BREMFREZLFELNTFR  EREEA -
£ 0.0005% % 0.001% (= = — £ F : 0.0005% %
0.001%) K FFI RFFHEME - WARBREER
B oWERBUESRLCKRARBEREDT - &
RAEZARR  FERAKENEBKMEE @ KKk
DT EFESNMEE o

EAESERLERE

B ELRBAEFELRENEERE
ZNTF8%E10.375% (=T —tF :15%) ) F 7
R EFE - WERBKERTE - WERER
BERECHEREBERRON - ARRIEERAE -
EERAEEMEREE @ RIS EEINME
& o

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26 HitEN R RESGE A
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FAE T
Other payables and accruals Hib e R ETE R 3,797 1,306
Unclaimed dividend payables 8] 7R <8 BXAY JE 151 iR B 4 4
3,801 1,310

SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN 27T. RRE XK

On 4 June 2018, the Group had obtained an unsecured and
unguaranteed loan at the rate of 8% per annum with principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 from its substantial shareholder,
namely Mr. Chen Chien Yeh (the “Shareholder’s Loan”). The
effective interest rate applied was 7.7% per annum and the
Shareholder’s Loan will mature on 6 October 2019.

RZZE—N\FAMOA  AEEEEHETERRE
BoR 722 2E 5 A 4R 4 | R 8% 15 /K 4 %E /430,000,000
BITHEREAEEERER((REEK]) - BA
NEBRFNEAETT% ZERREFER=_Z—AN
FE+ANBEHY-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

B=

—E-N\F+A=+—HILFE

28.CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 17 July 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds
(“CBs”) with face value of HK$17,500,000 to independent third
parties. The holders of CBs are entitled to convert the CBs in
whole or in part (in the amount not less than a whole multiple
of HK$500,000 or if the outstanding amount of the CBs is in
a lesser amount, such lesser amount) into ordinary shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$12.5 per ordinary
share at any time between the date of issue of the CBs and 16
July 2017.

The CBs bear interest of 6.5% per annum and shall be
payable in 2 installments, with the first interest payment to be
made on the date falling on the first anniversary from date of
issue of the CBs and the second interest payment to be made
upon the maturity.

Upon the issuance, the value of the CBs has been split
into the liability element and an equity component of
HK$17,260,000 and HK$240,000 respectively.

28.EIET5"1£%

R-ZTE—AFtA++tH AAFABIFE=F%
ZE Tﬁﬁz%w,soo,ooo,%mﬁ’ﬂ%#ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ(rﬁhﬁs
BESH]) - AIEBHRELFFEAGRRITERES
BTBHE_ZT—tF+A+NAHBEAE
Mg EnELSE2F IS (£ BT LR 500,000
BITHEHEE  NWNRATERESNHAEE
CHEEK AAZEERSBH)BHRALAQALA
B EEEREATRTEAR12.5F T -

A EMESKEE5%NFHNERFENEREAD M
X BRFENE HﬂE"—JLTﬁ‘L%;’??E%ﬁ
Eitm—BFEAEL  ME_XRNEMARER
BHAES -

\\\

7

RETHR  AIBRESNEES RRERD LE
= 8B 23 5117,260,0007% 7T % 240,000/8 7T

)8
d

Movements of the liability element are as follows: BESMSSNESHOT :
2018 2017
—E-N\EF T —tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER THT
At beginning of the year REH 12,564 17,832
Imputed interest charged FFEH R R 651 805
Redemption during the year RAFERER (12,500) (5,000)
Interest paid during the year RAFERZFHFE (715) (1,073)
Liability component at 31 December Rt+tZA=+—HBMaEHS — 12,564
Less: Amount due within one yearor & : RN —F RN E ki Bk
on demand classified as current BERTEMN SR
liabilities DERRDEE — (12,564)

RN—FRI AN T
DERIERBAE

Amount due over one year classified
as non-current liabilities

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an
effective interest rate of 7.26% to the liability component of
the CBs.

On 17 July 2017 and 8 May 2018, CBs with face value of
HK$5,000,000 and HK$12,500,000 were redeemed by the
Company in cash. During the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018, no CBs had been converted into ordinary shares of
the Company.
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KEEBFTENFE ME%FTEW,\%E?E i)
R7.26%MERFERFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29.PROMISSORY NOTES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had issued eight
promissory notes to seven individuals who are independent
to the Group with an aggregated principal value of
HK$27,220,000. These promissory notes bear interest at
rates ranging from 6.5% to 8% per annum and are due for
repayments ranging from 12th months to 96th months from
respective date of issuance.

On initial recognition, the fair value of promissory notes
issued by the Company were determined based on the
present value of the contractual stream of future cash flows
discounted at rates ranging from 5.5% to 7.7% per annum.
The discount rates are determined with reference to the yield
rate with credit rating and duration similar to the promissory
notes.

The details of the promissory notes for the year are set out
below:

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

29. &+ =&

RZE—NE+-A=+—8  ARAHET/EK
ANEFLEBIRAEBNEA  BEASHE
{8 427,220,000 7t ° 7% 5 & [ E126.5% % 8%
WEFMRAERE TR EERTHHEHSE
1218 B = 59618 A B HAE & -

N TERE - ARRMETHANENRRETD
RIBAHNRKESRD BIIALE%ET.7T%EF 7 X
FRFAENRERE - MEEXNDSEEEFRR
FHEANZERUENKRDRKETE °

RERNBBEANENFBHINGT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FHBT
At 1 January R—H—H 29,846 1,580
Issuance during the year RARFERNEST — 27,220
Imputed interest charged FTE MR B 1,618 1,215
Redemption during the year RAFERNED (8,530) —
Interest paid during the year RAFERZFHE (2,180) (169)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 20,754 29,846

Less: Amount due within one year W R—FERIHNSE
classified as current liabilities PEAREBERE (834) (9,626)

Amount due over one year classified as R — S &2 AN L5 -

non-current liabilities DERIERBEE 19,920 20,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

B=

—E-N\F+A=+—HILFE

30.DEFERRED TAX

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$255,228,000 (2017:
HK$196,632,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

30.JEE B IR
RBERAR AEBERFNBHBEERD
255,228,000/ 7L (= F — + F : 196,632,000 %8
7C) Al P MR K 8 R SRR om0 R SRR R AR B T
AEAMN  RAGERBEERERETEHRE
EoARERNHREERATAERRLES

SHARE CAPITAL 31. |} &
Number of shares Amount
RGOEE ok -]
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each, R=ZZE—+tF—H—8 "
at 1 January 2017, —E—+tF+-A=+—HBEK
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 —ET-—NF—H—H
BEREEIB TN T RR 100,000,000 100,000
Increase during the year AV AR I 900,000,000 900,000
Ordinary share of HK$1 each at RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 FRREE1S T T @R 1,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBERE :
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each R—ZE—+tF—HA—8 -
at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 —_FE—+tHF+-_A=+—HBRK
and 1 January 2018 —E2-N\E—-H—H
FREE1S TN T @R 85,928,950 85,929
Issue of shares on placement (note) B & F 2 1T IR (D (A 7)) 33,980,000 33,980
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each R-_ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2018 SRR EE1S T T R 119,908,950 119,909
Note: Bt -

On 11 May 2018, the Company and a placing agent entered into a
placing agreement in respect of the placement of 14,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each to independent investors at a price of HK$0.79
per share (“Placement 17). The Placement 1 was completed on 29
May 2018.

Details and the results of the Placement 1 are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 May 2018 and 29 May
2018.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

RZZFE—NFREA+—HB AR EEEREBIZE
EneE  RA B MM B LIE A %E B S14,000,000% & 5%
HEIBTHEER SEERASR07IST([ESE
FE1)) REFEIER _Z—-N\EFRAA-_+thBER
552 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 21 September 2018, the Company and another placing agent
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
19,980,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each to independent investors at
a price of HK$1.00 per share (“Placement 2”). The Placement 2 was
completed on 12 October 2018.

Details and the result of the Placement 2 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 September 2018 and 12
October 2018.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2018, 52.5% (2017:
80%) of the shares were in public hands.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

31. KA (4E)

R-E-NFAA-+—B AAFES-—RERE
RIS - AA A R BEILIE & & & 19,980,000
RER@EEVSTHLBER  SRERAF1.00% T ([
EFH2]) BREFTHE2ER-_Z—N\F+A+=A%
ﬁjz °

EHRESE2NFBRER  ERAQRIBHS A
—E-NFAAZF+—BAERZZE-NF+A+=HK

NER -

AEEEEEAKNEGSABABLLARERS
BFE REAKBEREMFERLE  WRFKRK
RARENRRER AKENEAEEARR
BROMBETRAX

AEEBBREBEEKNAREBEEAHBLN
B REBREAGEE AKESEBINK
B BOUHERORERODEARBEITHER &
CREBEBRHEEEAREES RFEGEE
BEXEBE RBEE-Z-N\FR-Z—LtF
ToA=T - HLEFER EEEANER K
RIBFAEEHEMES -

ME—SMEPRBIMEEARNEREG  AEBE MR E

R Em A EARKERERD BK
M#25% - AEEE A REIBRNBF BELERR
FRBZFRENERENRENES  EETE
FHRBENTE25%NEE -R-_E—-N\F+_H
=+—H 525% (=T —tF :80%)KRHH
RBEFAE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

32.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. 7 X B WY B AR OR R

COMPANY
The following is the statement of financial position of the LWTEBARARR-_E—N\FE_Z—+tF+=A
Company as at 31 December 2018 and 2017: =4—=E E’\Jﬂﬂ%ﬁkﬁ%
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
o aF FHET FH&ET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERZRE 19 29
Interests in subsidiaries MEBLQR 2R 34 31
Loan notes EREE 45,610 —
45,663 60
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HEfEl e RFEMFKIE
prepayments ; 15,764 7,945
Loan notes EXREE 10,417 6,546
Financial assets at FVTPL ZRNAERERERIEZ
PREE 85,069 201,399
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAnEREMEEKS
FIRR 2 @B & E 35,176 —
Due from securities brokers JIE U 78 5 4K 42 SR IH 12 461
Bank balances R 1T & 87 4,734 3,835
151,172 220,186
Current liabilities REAE
Due to securities brokers ENZBAEL R 5,190 1,814
Other payables and accruals E i & 5 5K &V ;Hr =2 3,801 1,310
Shareholder's loan RERE R 31,710 —
Amount due to a subsidiary J& < Bt B & B 5K IH 7,413 7,425
Convertible bonds A] 8 E 5 — 12,564
Promissory notes N 834 9,626
48,948 32,739
Net current assets REBEEFE 102,224 187,447
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBARS 147,887 187,507
Non-current liabilities kABAE
Promissory notes S E 19,920 20,220
Net assets EEFE 127,967 167,287
Capital and reserves ERE #E
Share capital f% A 119,909 85,929
Reserves i (a) 8,058 81,358
Total equity RS 127,967 167,287
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors RZZE-—NF=ZA=-t+N\BEZESgHtEREE
on 28 March 2019. Flz -
Wu Ming Gai Chan Carman Wing Yan
A 85 1 BR % iR
Director Director
EE EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
Note:

(a) Movements of the Company’s reserve

32.

RE M B ERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

A BB R R & ()

Hrat

(a) ARRIHEBEED

Financial Retained
Convertible assets at profits/
Share  bonds equity FVTOCI (accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses) Total
BARE
REM2HE
AERARS I 2 51 B 2 REB&RF/
IR 4 % BEfE LSREERE (R E#R) aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET TET TET FTET
1 January 2017 —T-t5-H—H 203,918 240 — 82,684 286,842
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ £EEEK 2 ENEAE
for the year — — — (205,484) (205,484)
Redemption of convertible bonds BEERES — (69) — 69 =
As 31 December 2017 and RZZE—tE+ZA=+t-HEK
1 January 2018 —ZT-\¥—f—H 203,918 171 — (122,731) 81,358
Loss and total comprehensive income for & [ [E518 [ & [ M & 4 5
the year - - 8,676 (78,435) (69,759)
Issue of shares on placement RERBETRG (3,541) — — — (3,541)
Redemption of convertible bonds BEATERES — (171) — 171 —
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\§+-A=+-A 200,377 — 8,676 (200,995) 8,058

Annual Report 20185

157



158

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

33.RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount by which
the issue price of shares exceeds the par value of
those shares and is distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

The convertible bonds equity reserve represents
the value of the unexercised equity component of
convertible bonds issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 4(k) to the consolidated
financial statements.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve represents
the cumulative net charge in fair value of equity
investments held at the end of the reporting period
and recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity instruments in note 4(f) to
the consolidated financial statements.

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the
Group’s net assets of approximately HK$135,391,000 (2017:
HK$174,734,000) divided by the Company’s ordinary shares
in issue of 119,908,950 as at 31 December 2018 and the
ordinary shares in issue of 85,928,950 as at 31 December
2017.

35.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction
(i) Subscription of loan notes

As disclosed in note 21(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had subscribed
two trenches of loan notes with principal value of
HK$24,000,000 each totaling HK$48,000,000. The
subscription of loan notes were satisfied by way
of (i) cash of HK$5,500,000 and (ii) the disposals
of CB3 and CB4 with fair values of approximately
HK$23,355,000 and HK$23,306,000 respectively as at
their respective dates of disposal.

(i) Subscription of private equity fund designated
at FVTPL

As disclosed in note 22(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had subscribed
39.25% of a private equity fund at consideration of
approximately HK$19,001,000. The subscription
of private equity fund was satisfied by way of the
disposal of trading securities with fair value of
approximately HK$19,001,000 as at the date of the
disposal.

(iii) Subscription of unlisted equity investments
designated at FVTOCI

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had subscribed 18.18% and
20% equity interest of a Hong Kong and an Anguilla
incorporated private entities at considerations of
approximately HK$8,000,000 and HK$18,500,000
respectively in which consideration of the subscription
amounted to approximately HK$18,500,000 was
partly satisfied by way of the disposal of CB1 with fair
value of approximately HK$14,758,000 as at the date
of the disposal.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

MUMBREEFE
BEREEFEDNRBASEEZCEEFED
135,739,000/8 7t (= & — £ F : 174,734,000 /&
TIBRU=_ZE—NF+_A=+—HAQAE
1T EMM119,908,950 K —E—+tF + = 8
=+ —HARAE T 3®A%85,928,950 % 5
:éjo

B.EARRERERME

(a) FEZFBEERSH
(i) REEAEE

o U0 AR A B RS TR 3R MY R 21(i)FT B
AEEEREMBERZE A5 5
24,000,000 7% 7T & 2k 448,000,000 4
T oRBERZEEBUTHIAEN
()37 £ 5,500,000 7T : K(ii)H & 7] &
BREHIRAERESRS HARERS
B & B H 5 5l 49 523,355,0007% 7T &
23,306,000/8 JT °

(if) 35875 73 ¥ 2 70 1B R 18 a8 B S B
CoRIE-F -5
IR A BTG MR M aE22(c) i B - &
SECREI02B%NALEES  KER
#719,001,000/8 7T - RBALZELEB
HEARERLE B B /R 419,001,000
BLIMRZHEHEN -

(i) R B 1E E B AT ER A M2 H K
m IR IE_ETTIRERE
p;iwu,mAﬁﬂk*&%MTﬁmﬁﬂ& C R

REDHRBEBRLZENEMAL
ZMA,\LE’Mss%&zo%HﬂEé KB
2 Bl 49 /48,000,000 7T £ 18,500,000
UL E R KB/ 418,500,0005% T
FRHEREBESIHOENS  EAR
B HE B H# 514,758,000/ 7T °
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e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

35.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

B.RERTRERMWE(F)

(b) ERMEETHELENABNHIK

TRATEERRERHELNABEEF
B ERASRIRSEY AREETHE
ENRBEEEASESARERERDER
MEEHELENRERENE S REN LK
BNEARERDELANE S REN RKRE
ERENBEBAE -

1 January Cash Interest 31 December
2018 flows charges 2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
-A—H BeRE FNEER t-A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TERT TERT TERT
Shareholder’s loan REER — 30,000 1,710 31,710
Convertible bonds — liability EkEs —aREs
component (note 28) (H17#28) 12,564 (13,215) 651 —
Promissory notes (note 29) AR (H17£29) 29,846 (10,710) 1,618 20,754
42,410 6,075 3,979 52,464
1 January Cash Interest 31 December
2017 flows charges 2017
—E—+F T —tF
—R—H Bang FE8H t—A=+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FTAET FTHET FTHET
Convertible bonds — liability AERES — BB
component (note 28) (471 7%28) 17,832 (6,073) 805 12,564
Promissory notes (note 29) AR (f17#£29) 1,580 27,051 1,215 29,846
19,412 20,978 2,020 42,410
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) On 29 February 2016, the Company entered into an

investment management agreement (“Investment
Management Agreement”) with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”),
pursuant to which Tiger Securities has agreed to act as
the investment manager of the Company and to provide
investment management services to the Company for a
period of two years commencing from 1 March 2016 and
expiring on 28 February 2018.

According to the Investment Management Agreement,
Tiger Securities shall be entitled to a management fees
of 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000.

On 24 November 2016, the Company entered into a
supplemental investment management agreement
(“Supplemental Investment Management Agreement”)
with Tiger Securities, pursuant to which, with effect from
1 January 2017, management fees as set out in the
Investment Management Agreement shall be changed
from 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000 to 1% per
annum on the net asset value as per the management
account of the Company of the preceding month with an
annual cap of HK$2,980,000. Save as above changed,
all other terms and conditions set forth in the Investment
Management Agreement shall remain unchanged, in full
force and effect.

On 28 February 2018, the Company entered into a
renewal agreement with Tiger Securities to renew
the investment management services period from 28
February 2018 to 28 February 2019.

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, an executive director of the Company,
is a director and responsible officer of Tiger Securities.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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BHANEE NS BEEKEEERSE M
H-ZE— N \FZA=Z+N\BE=ZZT—NF=
A=+ N\H -

ARBATEFHHRELTERFTRIESFNE
ERBEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

The management fees and incentive fee paid and payable
to Tiger Securities are as follows:

Tiger Securities: RERF:
Management fees EEE

36.BAM T X Z (&)

(a) (&)

ENEENFZRS-NERERESHT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
1,474 2,980

The above management fees paid or payable to Tiger
Securities are continuing connected transactions (“CCT”)
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but
regarded as de minimis transaction pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules as the CCT had fulfill the
relevant requirements.

On 11 May 2018, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Tiger Securities in respect of the
placement of 14,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
The placement was completed on 29 May 2018 and the
placing commission paid and payable to Tiger Securities
are as follows:

Tiger Securities: REHE
Commission H &

BN ENREEFNEREEB(LET
RADETWAEFMATHREBER S ([HF
BRERSZ])  Am - REBE(ETHRBDE
14AT6(NIE  BRFERERISHFTEBRER
F A EERANEZEREKEHR
% °

RZZE—NFRA+ A8 ARREFEH
%513 — T8 A B3 B & 14,000,0000% & 2 7] &
AR CEEHE ZEER_Z—\FHA
ZtHhBAEREK BENEENEEZEFNRE
BmewT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E L F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FB T
332 —

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors is disclosed in note 15(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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37.0PERATING LEASES

The Group leases an office under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of two years, with an

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

37.8E ALY
AEMBBELHELOERPAZE -HE—RDNS
RERE  HAMRBEITHEY  EEFEIEX

option to renew the lease after that date at which time all HEHER -

terms are renegotiated.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

R-ZB-N\F+-_A=+—08 AEERELH
REBFZAUHELEHNAN KRN ZRE

leases in respect of land and buildings as follows: HESBEBEWOT -
2018 2017
—E-NE el
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Within one year —FRA 280 480
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EERF(BEEMERBEENA) — 280
280 760

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2018:

Name of subsidiary

MEDR AR

IT Star Limited

Datacom Venture Limited

Studio V

*

None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period.

Place of
incorporation

o B SZ 3t B
British Virgin Islands
EBELEHE
British Virgin Islands

RBRELES

Hong Kong
BB

Shares held directly by the Company.

38. fft B 2 =
R-E— \E+-_A=+—BsHBATEEN

™
Particulars of
Principal activities issued share
and place of operation capital Interest held
FTEXBREXME ERTRAFE FrfsRE &
Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%™
in Hong Kong of US$1
REEZER BB 1IRE B 13T
2 E B
Inactive in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%
of US$1
TER BB 1IREE1ETT
2 E B
Inactive in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%*
TER/BE 10,0007 7T

* ARREEEREAZBH

RBERR  SMBRARLEETEMELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—- \FH+A=+—HLFE

39.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 January 2019, the Company proposed to change
the domicile of the Company from the Cayman lIslands to
Bermuda by way of deregistration in the Cayman Islands
and continuation as an exempted company under the laws
of Bermuda (“Change of Domicile”). The implementation of
the Change of Domicile will not affect the continuity of the
Company and its listing status.

In connection with the Change of Domicile, it is proposed that
the new memorandum and the bye-laws be adopted by the
Company to replace, respectively, the Memorandum and the
Articles in order to comply with the company law of Bermuda.

Upon the Change of Domicile being effective, the Company
also proposed to implement a capital reorganisation which will
involve the following:

(i) Reduction of Share Premium — the entire amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company be reduced to nil and the credit arising
from such reduction be transferred to an existing account
of the Company designated as the contributed surplus
account of the Company;

(ii) Capital Reduction — the par value of each of the issued
existing ordinary shares of the Company to be reduced
from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 per issued ordinary share
by the cancellation of the paid up share capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.90 per issued ordinary
share by way of a reduction of capital, such that the par
value of the issued Existing Shares will be reduced to
HK$0.10 each; and

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT

.HEHREE

RZZE—NF—AZ+=H  AQRAZZALA
ERAREERNFEREZEMEMREIREE
RIEREHRRAREEGFEZ TN BARAZ
At AFESHE T A B R ZE ([ E M
B - ETEREMEHETEXERRRZE
BRERBRZMZ LA -

REXREMEHEMT - AR /ETERERA
RIS AR R LA D B AR A48 B A
Al -

AT TFEZN R G M B AR EETRAE
HERPRTIRE :

(i) BUBERMEE — ARRBRMOEER 22
ERSBHBEST YR AEBHBAELEZ
ERBEZEE/AARAEZEBEZAR
RIERARP :

(i) BEAHIR — FBEIBBRATRA - EHEARF
EZRAESRE H#1TEBR0Q0EBIT - A
AR BHRCHTRETEREEAERE R
17 & EAR1.008 TTHIRE0.108 7T » UL E

HTRABRNEESRESRA0GET © &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(iii) Share Sub-division — immediately following the above
proposed capital reduction, each of the authorised but
unissued ordinary shares with par value of HK$1.00 each
be subdivided into 10 new ordinary shares with par value
of HK$0.10 each.

The Change of Domicile and the Capital Reorganisation are
conditional upon satisfaction of the respective conditions.
Therefore, the Change of Domicile and the Capital
Reorganisation may or may not proceed.

Details of the above were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 23 January 2019, 25 January 2019, 1
February 2019 and 11 March 2019.

On 28 February 2019, the Company entered into the renewal
agreement with Tiger Securities Asset Management Company
Limited to renew the investment management services period
from 28 February 2019 to 31 August 2019.

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—BILFE

0.HMEMREE(EA)

(i) R4 — B LA EZRAYRE &
A% T 1E1.007 7T 3% 7F 18 oK 3% 17 & 58 A% 15 37 41
A10E F IR EEA0B T & BAK -

AT M B KRR EABGFE B IRTEKR
TREE - At BAGEMME MRAEE S —
EEET e

P EBENFBEAREARAABHAE T —hLF
—A=Z+=A Z—ZE—AF—A=+HH ==
—NWNEF-_A—BE=_ZE—NAF=ZA+—HHR

& oo

RZE-NEF_AZ+N\B AREHEFEEF
BEEBERRARGVERAHE EBEREAEE
RESHEH-_ZE—hAhE-_A -+ N\BE-Z—H
FNA=+—8-

my F
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FMBEHBE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=—A=1+—HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—THE —T-AF —FT-RF —FT—+F ZFB-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T3 T T FH T FHET FET
Results: ¥E
(Loss) profit attributable to KRABEE AEAS
shareholders owners (B1E) &= A
of the Company (36,569) 316,286  (194,959)  (205,508) (69,782)
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+-—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-—NFE —T-—HF ZT-ARF —T—+tF ZB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET T &I FB T FH T THERT
Assets and liabilities: EERERE:
Current assets mEEE 174,497 510,039 415,572 220,239 196,827
Total assets g E 180,225 510,196 415,657 220,268 196,846
Current liabilities mEaE 7,376 5,334 33,835 25,314 41,535
Total liabilities ®a & 7,376 23,015 35,415 45,534 61,455
Shareholders’ funds REREE S 172,849 487,181 380,242 174,734 135,391

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSZBRAERAT
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